
  

 

 

 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday 26 July 2022 at 6.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, TN1 1RS 

 
 

 

Borough Council Representatives:  Councillors Pope (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), Allen, 
Barrass, Dawlings, Hall and McMillan 

Independent Members:  Turner and Elliott 

Parish/Town Council Representatives: Councillors Mackonochie and Edwards 

Quorum: 3 Members, to include at least one independent member 

 
 

1   Chairman's Introduction  (Page 4) 

2   Apologies for Absence  (Page 5) 
Apologies for absence as reported at the meeting. 

3   Declarations of Interest  (Page 6) 
To receive any declarations of interest by Members in items on the agenda. 
 
For any advice on declarations of interest, please contact the Monitoring Officer. 

4   Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak (in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 18):  (Page 7) 
Members should indicate which item(s) they wish to speak on and the nature of their 
concern/question/request for clarification. 

5   Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 22 March 2022  
(Pages 8 - 11) 

6   Future Work Programme as at 26 July 2022  (Pages 12 - 13) 

7   Strategic Risk Review July 2022  (Pages 14 - 35) 

8   Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22  (Pages 36 - 57) 

9   External Audit Plan and Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2021/22  (Pages 58 - 
114) 

10   Urgent Business  (Page 115) 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 
 
 

11   Date of Next Meeting Tuesday 13 September 2022  (Page 116) 

 

 
 
Democratic Services Team Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
  Town Hall 
Tel: (01892) 554413 ROYAL TUNBRIDGE WELLS 
Email: Committee@TunbridgeWells.gov.uk Kent   TN1 1RS 
 

 

Watch Live 
 

Watch this meeting live via the Council’s website. 

Archived recordings of previous meetings are also available. 
 

Visit   www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts  

 

 

mod.gov app – go paperless 
 

Easily download, annotate and keep all committee paperwork on your 

mobile device using the mod.gov app – all for free! 
 

Visit . www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp   

Page 2

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp
http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/modgovapp


 
 
 

 

Attending Meetings 
 
Meetings are held in the town hall and are webcast live online. 
 
Any member of the public may attend to watch/listen in person or online live via our website on 
the relevant committee’s meeting page. A recording of the meeting will also be available shortly 
after the end of the meeting. 
 
All meetings and agenda are open to the public except where confidential information is being 
discussed. The agenda of the meeting will identify whether any meeting or part of the meeting is 
not open to the public and explain why. 
 

Speaking at Meetings 
 
Members of the public are encouraged to participate and may speak to the Council directly on 
any item on the agenda for up to 3 minutes. Members of the public (and any members of the 
Council who are not members of the committee) will need to register with Democratic Services 
in advance. Please see the agenda item titled Notification of Persons Registered to Speak 
for more details. 
 

Coming to the Town Hall 

 
All visitors attending a public meeting at the Town Hall should report to Reception via the side 
entrance in Monson Way no earlier than 15 minutes before the start of the meeting. 
 
Seating will be allocated on a first-come-first-serve basis. The Council may alter the number 
and location of available seats if necessary on safety or public health grounds. 
 
The public proceedings of this meeting will be recorded and made available for playback on the 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council website. Any other third party may also record or film 
meetings, unless exempt or confidential information is being considered, but are requested as a 
courtesy to others to give notice of this to the Clerk before the meeting. The Council is not liable 
for any third party recordings. 
 
Further details are available on the website www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings or from 
Democratic Services 

If you require this information in another format 
please contact us, call 01892 526121 or email 

committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk  
 

Page 3

http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/meetings
mailto:committee@tunbridgewells.gov.uk


 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Chairman’s Introduction 

 

Chairman’s Introduction  

For Audit and Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any announcements on procedural matters. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Apologies for Absence 

 

Apologies for Absence  

For Audit and Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Declarations of Interest 

 

Declarations of Interest 

For Audit and Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To receive any declarations of interest by members in items on the agenda in accordance 

with the Members’ Code of Conduct. For any advice on declarations of interest, please 

contact the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Notification of Persons Registered to Speak 

 

Notification of Persons Registered to 

Speak 

For Audit and Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To note any Visiting Members or members of the public wishing to speak, of which due 

notice has been given in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18 or 19, and which 

item(s) they wish to speak on. 

 

Information for members of the public wishing to speak. 

Members of the public are encouraged to participate and those wishing to comment on an 

agenda item will need to register with Democratic Services in advance.  Registration opens 

when the agenda is published and closes at 4pm on the last working day before the meeting. 

There may be up to 4 speakers per agenda item and speakers have up to 3 minutes each. 

Once registered, speakers will need to attend the meeting in person. Comments should be in 

the form of a statement giving your opinion on the matter. Members of the committee may 

not answer questions or get into a debate with you. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



1 

 
 

TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting held at the Council Chamber, Town Hall, Royal Tunbridge Wells, 
TN1 1RS, at 6.30 pm on Tuesday, 22 March 2022 

 
Present: Councillor Joe Simmons (Chairman) 

Councillors Allen, Backhouse (Vice-Chairman), Britcher-Allan, Chapelard, Everitt, 
Hamilton, and Warne. 

Parish Representatives: Councillors Edwards and Mackonochie 
Independent Members: Messrs Quigley and Turner. 

 
Officers in Attendance: Omer Awais (Audit Manager Grant Thornton), William Benson 
(Chief Executive), Joanne E Brown (Audit Partner), Jane Fineman (Head of Finance and 
Procurement), Andew Townsend (Intrim Head of Internal Audit Partnership) and Mark 
O'Callaghan (Scrutiny and Engagement Officer) 
 
Other Members in Attendance: Councillors  
 
CHAIRMAN'S INTRODUCTION 
 
AG48/21 
 

The Chairman opened the meeting, introduced Committee members and 
officers in attendance, and outlined procedural matters of the meeting.  
 
The Chairman and Mr William Benson, Chief Executive thanked Independent 
Member Mr Tony Quigley for his support and his contribution to the Audit & 
Governance Committee and the Council. 
 
Mr Quigley advised that he had put a substantial amount of work into the 
project review process and welcomed an update on the recommendations 
that were made. 
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
AG49/21 
 

There were no apologies for absence received. 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
AG50/21 
 

No declarations of interest were received. 
 

NOTIFICATION OF VISITING MEMBERS WISHING TO SPEAK (IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE 18): 
 
AG51/21 
 

No notifications of any visiting members wishing to speak had been received. 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE DATED 
23 NOVEMBER 2022 
 
AG52/21 
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 23 
November 2021 were submitted. The typo was acknowledged and the year 
corrected to 2021. 
 
Claudette Valmond, Monitoring Officer stated that in section AG43/21 on 
page 15 of the minutes, the paragraph stated there was a correction to 
paragraph H  and the figure quoted as £250,000, should have been £25,000. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



2 

 
 

 
RESOLVED – That including the above correction and the acknowledged 
typo, the minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 23 
November 2021 be approved as a correct record. 
 

FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME AS AT 03 MARCH 2022 
 
AG53/21 
 

The Committee’s work programme was presented for members’ information.     
 
RESOLVED – That the Future Work Programme as at 03 March 2022, be 
noted. 
 

UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS RECEIVED UNDER THE MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
AG54/21 
 

Mr Gary Rowland, Senior Legal Advisor (Corporate Governance) presented 
his report which gave the Audit and Governance Committee an update on 
complaints received under the Members’ Code of Conduct in the period 1 
September 2021 to 28 February 2022. 
 
Discussion and questions from Members included the following: 

i. No matters of significance were raised. 
 
RESOLVED:  
 

1. That the update on complaints received under the Members’ Code 
of Conduct, be noted. 

 
EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT REPORT FOR 2021 
 
AG55/21 
 

Ms Joanne E Brown, Audit Partner Grant Thornton presented her report 
which provided the Audit and Governance Committee with the external 
auditor’s annual report and value for money conclusions in respect of 
2020/21. 
 
Discussion and questions from Members and Officer clarification 
included: 

i. The forecast outturn for the end of the financial year was 
confirmed at 36.2 million as at quarter 3. 

ii. The point was made that the forecast outturn amount included an 
amount of 15 to 16 million that was repayable for the collection 
fund, the money did not belong to the council but was held 
because of covid grants and discounts given on business rates. 

iii. It was considered that from an external audit perspective 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council (TWBC) was in a relatively 
strong financial position both nationally and in the local Kent area 
relative to other councils. 

iv. It was advised that plans were in place to have a new 5 year plan 
drafted and agreed over the course of the year and an 
organisational development strategy would be aligned to support 
that. 

v. In terms of statutory and non statutory services, officers advised 
that communication was important to make it Clear as to what 
people were funding and where cost savings could be made in the 
future. In the end the Government made the decisions about what 
services were retained it was agreed that TWBC could  provide 
information to help. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



3 

 
 

vi. External auditors gave an explanation as to how the Improvement 
recommendation. 

vii. An explanation about the external auditor’s Improvement 
recommendation was given as well as details about the proposed 
TWBC budget strategy going forward given that there had not 
been a spending review in recent times. 

viii. It was confirmed that details of a covid recovery plan would be 
captured in the external auditor’s 2021-2022 report. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the auditor’s annual report and value for money conclusions, 
be agreed. 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT & ASSURANCE PLAN 2022/23 
 
AG56/21 
 

Mr Townsend, Interim Head of Audit Partnership presented his report which 
set out the proposed Plan for Mid Kent Audit’s work at Tunbridge Wells 
Borough Council during 2022/23. The plan provided an overview of the range 
of areas for potential future examination by internal Audit. It was based on the 
outcomes of risk assessments and consultation and considered the resources 
available to the partnership. 
 
Discussion and questions from Members and Officer clarification 
included: 

i. The Committee was advised that the recruitment process for the 
Head of Audit position was still underway. 

ii. It was confirmed that any changes to the internal audit and 
assurance plan would be taken to the Audit and Governance 
Committee, with the exception of any urgent matters that needed 
Chair’s actions to be considered. 

iii. It was advised that information about The Amelia Scott audit plan 
would be sent to Members as requested. 

 
RESOLVED:  

1. That the Internal Audit & Assurance Plan for 2022/23, be 
approved. That included delegating to the Head of Audit 
Partnership authority to keep the plan current as set out in the 
appendix. 

2. That the Head of Audit Partnership’s view that the Partnership 
currently has sufficient resource to deliver the Plan and a robust 
Head of Audit Opinion, be noted. 

3. That the Head of Audit Partnership’s assurance that the Plan is 
compiled independently and without inappropriate influence from 
management, be noted. 

 
STRATEGIC RISK REVIEW 
 
AG57/21 
 

Mr William Benson, Chief Executive presented his report which set out the 
strategic risks identified by the Council and currently being managed and 
tracked by senior management. The report provided a current update on the 
valuated threat level and controls in place for each risk issue. 
 
Discussion and questions from Members and Officer clarification 
included: 

i. Details of the Government’s and Tunbridge Wells Borough 

Page 10

Agenda Item 5



4 

 
 

Council’s (TWBC) response to the crisis in the Ukraine were given. 
ii. There was exceptional support from the Tunbridge Wells 

Community, individuals and organisations in terms of host families 
and providing aid and resources to Ukraine. 

iii. Councils were expected to undertake checks on properties and 
people to ensure guests safety. 

iv. The Local Resilience Forum set up within Kent met daily and 
TWBC held daily meetings within the council. 

v. There was an option to use the Tunbridge Wells Gateway as a 
hub for people to come and seek support and advice. 

vi. It was understood that the composition of families would be 
women, children and older people and not a huge of 
unaccompanied individuals. 

 
RESOLVED:  
 

1. That the risk management report and arrangements for managing 
strategic risk, be noted. 

 
URGENT BUSINESS 
 
AG58/21 
 

There was no urgent business for consideration. 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 25 MAY 2022 
 
AG59/21 
 

The next meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee was scheduled for 
25 May 2022. 
 

 
 NOTE: The meeting concluded at 7.30 pm. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

Page  

1 of 2 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Work Programme 

 

Work Programme 

For Audit and Governance Committee – Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Re-occurring items 

Report Title 25/05/22 26/07/2022 13/092022 22/11/22 14/03/23 

Appointment of members to 
the Constitution Review 
Working Party 

     

Draft Financial Report and 
Audit Findings 

  X   

Audit and Governance 
Committee Annual Report 

   X  

Annual Internal Audit Report 
and Opinion 

 X    

Internal Audit and Assurance 
Plan 

    X 

Internal Audit Interim Report    X  

Internal Audit Charter     X 

Annual Audit Letter    X  

External Audit Plan (including 
Audit Fee) 

  X   

External Audit Progress 
Report 

 X    

Strategic Risk Register  X X X X 

Attendance of Strategic Risk 
Owners 

 Lee Colyer William 
Benson 

Paul 
Taylor 

Chris 
Woodward 

      

Update on Member 
Complaints 

  X  X 

Annual Complaints Report 
and Local Government 
Ombudsman Annual Review 

     

 

 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



 

Member Training 

DATE     

Member Training Programme/Role of Internal Audit     

Member Training Programme/Role of External Audit     

Statutory Statement of Accounts     

 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

Page  

1 of 5 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

Strategic Risk Register  

For Audit and Governance Committee on 26 July 2022

 

Summary 

Lead Member: All 

Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Head of Service: Andrew Townsend, Interim Head of Audit Partnership 

Report Author: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Classification: Public document (non-exempt) 

Wards Affected: All 

Approval Timetable Date 

Management Board 13 July 2022 

Audit and Governance Committee 26 July 2022 

Recommendations 

Officer / Committee recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder: 

1. That the Committee notes the risk management report and arrangements for 

managing strategic risk.  

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

2 of 5 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary 

1.1 This report sets out the strategic risks identified by the Council and currently being 
managed and tracked by senior management.  The report provides a current update on 
the evaluated threat level and controls in place for each risk issue. 

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1 The risks included in the report were developed in a risk management workshop and 

health check facilitated by Zurich Insurance Limited on 25 March 2019, with the risks 

being formally adopted by Cabinet on 1 August 2019.  Since that time, risk owners 

have kept the risks and controls under review with periodic reporting both to the 

Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.   

2.2 The Council’s Management Board periodically reviews the risks identified along with 

the risk owners.  

2.3 Risk owners (managers) for certain risks are invited to attend the Audit and 

Governance Committee meetings to outline the Council’s approach to managing their 

particular risk(s). The meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee will be able to 

examine the risk(s) owned by Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and 

Development. 

 

• Risk 4:  Unable to plan financially over the Longer-term.  

3. Options Considered 

3.1 There is no legal requirement on the authority formally to monitor its risks, still less is 
there a defined framework to do so.  Although failing to monitor and record risks will 
leave the Council vulnerable to external criticism – for example by its external auditors 
who are required to assess the effectiveness of risk management when considering 
their annual Value For Money conclusion. 

 
3.2 There is merit in maintaining a strategic risk register which accords with the principles 

of good risk management and this has proved to be an effective tool for responding to 
and recovering from the pandemic.  
 

3.3 The council’s insurance contract with Zurich provides access to specialist risk 
management and resilience expertise. Zurich have been commissioned to deliver the 
following pieces of work. 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

3 of 5 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

• Cyber Health Check – reflecting the increased instances of cyber 
attacks/incidents at a national level. 

 

• Strategic Risk Training Session and Workshop in the Autumn with the new 
administration which will inform the development of a new Strategic Risk 
Register.   

4. Preferred Option and Reason 
 

4.1 The report sets out the risks using the methodology and format previously agreed by 

the Council, which is essentially the method advocated by Zurich from the 2019 risk 

workshop 

5. Consultation on Options 

5.1 The Strategic Risk Register has undergone periodic review and examination by the 

Council’s Management Board, the Cabinet and the Audit & Governance Committee.  

This stands in addition to ongoing monitoring by the identified risk owners.  This report 

incorporates feedback and updates from all sources. 

6. Appendices and Background Documents 

Appendices: 

• Appendix A: Strategic Risk Register Update July 2022 

Background Papers: 

• None 

7. Cross Cutting Issues 

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act) 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to have a sound 
system of control which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
This Report is part of those arrangements and is designed to ensure that the 
appropriate controls are effective. 
 
There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Page 16

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

4 of 5 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

B. Finance and Other Resources 

None identified at this stage. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

 

C. Staffing 

None identified at this stage. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

D. Risk Management 

Risk management is the subject of the report, but it does not of itself raise new risk issues for 

consideration.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

E. Environment and Sustainability 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

F. Community Safety 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

G. Equalities 

None identified at this stage. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

H. Data Protection 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 

Page  

5 of 5 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Strategic Risk Register 

 

I. Health and Safety 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

J. Health and Wellbeing 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

 

 

 

 

Page 18

Agenda Item 7



Strategic Risks 
 

The Strategic Risk Profile chart below shows each risk scored onto the risk matrix graph. The 
further towards the top right-hand corner the greater the risk to the Council. The chart below 
provides only a snapshot on a particular date. 
 
The risk scenarios are: 
 

• CSR01: Cyber attack / incident 

• CSR02: Economic development and vitality 

• CSR03: Contract management and delivery 

• CSR04: Unable to plan financially over the longer-term 

• CSR05: National policy changes in short term that negatively impact on TWBC 

• CSR06: Service Interruption 

• CSR07: Capacity fails to keep pace with ambitions 

• CSR08: Local plan adoption – housing  

• CSR09: The Amelia Scott 

• CSR10: Climate Change 

• CSR11: Pandemic 
 
 
 
   July 2022     

         

         

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 

5 

    

    

   

Likelihood 
5 = Almost Certain 
4 = Likely 
3 = Possible 
2 = Unlikely 
1 = Remote 

4 

  

    

CSR 01 
CSR 06 
CSR 07 
CSR 10 

   

3 

  

 CSR 11 
CSR 04 
CSR 05 
CSR 09 

CSR 03 
CSR 08 

   

Impact 
5+ Catastrophic 
4 = Major 
3 = Moderate 
2 = Minor 
1 = Minimal 

2 

  

    CSR 02 

   

1 

            

  

1 2 3 4 5 

  

  
Impact 

   

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 
Strategic Risk Profile 

Page 19

Appendix A



The table below tracks movement in the identified strategic risk areas.  
 

Risk 
 Ref 

Title 
September 

2021 
November 

2021 
March 2022 May 2022 July 2022 Trend 

CSR 01 Cyber-attack/ incident 
12 12 16 16 16 

 
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 02 
Economic development 
and vitality 

16 16 8 8 8 
 

(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (2 x Lk, 4 x Im) (2 x Lk, 4 x Im) (2 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 03 
Contract management and 
delivery 

20 20 12 12 12 
 

(5 x Lk, 4 x Im) (5 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 04 
Unable to plan financially 
over the longer-term. 

16 16 9 9 9 
 

(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 05 
National policy changes in 
short term impact 
negatively on TWBC. 

16 16 12 12 9 
 

(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 06 Service Interruption 
16 16 16 16 16 

➔ 
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 07 
Capacity fails to keep pace 
with ambitions 

16 16 16 16 16 
➔ 

(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 08 
Local plan adoption - 
housing 

16 16 12 12 12 
 

(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 09 The Amelia Scott 
12 12 9 9 9 

 
(3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) 

CSR 10 Climate Emergency 
16 16 16 16 16 

➔ 
(4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) (4 x Lk, 4 x Im) 

CSR 11 Pandemic 
20 20 9 9 6 

 
(5 x Lk, 4 x Im) (5 x Lk, 4 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 3 x Im) (3 x Lk, 2 x Im) 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 20

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 1: Cyber-attack / incident 
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/ Impact Likely (4) /Major (4) 

A successful cyber-attack or cyber incident 

which causes significant disruption to ability 

to deliver services 

Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Andrew Hickey Officer Risk Owner Chris Woodward 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/Actions  

• Increased threat from cyber security 
attacks with the National Cyber Security 
Centre calling on organisations to be on 
heightened alert following the Russian 
invasion of Ukraine. 

• Ever increasing reliance on digital systems 
for virtually all Council activities and 
services 

• Data increasingly held in electronic format, 
not on hard copy paper records 

• Robustness of IT Disaster recovery 
arrangements. 

 

• Systems offline for a period of 

time 

• Loss of data 

• Impacting on the ability of 

Tunbridge to deliver services 

• Service disruption/failure  

• Dissatisfied customers – not 

meeting customer expectations 

• Data compromised / lost 

• Safeguarding and data 

protection issues 

• Financial impact –potential fine 

and cost of rectifying 

• Designation of a Senior Information Risk Officer 

• Public Service Network accreditation renewal Q3 

• Support from the National Centre for Cyber 
Security (part of GCHQ) 

• Continuation of cyber awareness campaign -  

• Upgrade to current backup technology Q3 

• Cortex XDR security agents are installed on all 
corporate devices. 

• Renewed Darktrace AI based cyber immune 
system 

• Nessus scanning software reporting daily on 
system vulnerabilities 

• Implementation of Next Gen firewall Q3 

• ICT policies & staff training, including disaster 
recovery planning. 

• Planned appointment of a Security Officer 
 

  

P
age 21

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 2:  Economic development and vitality 
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Unlikely (2) / Major (4) 

Tunbridge Wells not seen as a destination 

of choice for retailers / consumers / 

employers 
Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Moderate (3) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Justine Rutland Officer Risk Owner David Candlin 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions 

• Competition for economic opportunities 
from other areas 

• Longer term High Street and retail decline 
over last 18 months 

• Significant change in nature of high street 
due to Covid-19 – including accelerated 
shift to online and ‘experience’ 

• Significant change in office working 
practices and reduced daily market  

• Significant cost of living increases 
impacting household disposable income 

• Redevelopment of RVP to provide an 
improved offer 

• Ongoing infrastructure issues, particularly 
traffic congestion affecting opportunities 

• The implications of Brexit with a very thin 
trading agreement with the EU, and wider 
economic impacts with the potential to 
have a significant impact on the local 
economy. 

• Lose out to other areas 

• Impact on economic vitality of area 

• Large scale property vacancy 

• Major redefinition of public realm 
space 

• Unable to secure sufficient 
opportunities 

• Local area and people lose out 

• Insufficient inward investment 

• Potential for knock on effects 

• Curtails attractiveness 

• Significant and ongoing impact on 
revenue streams and income (inc. 
business rates and car parking) 

• Housing not built  

• More vulnerable to appeal around 
Local Plan.  

• Impact on staff recruitment and 
retention 

• Damage to reputation as a place 
for investment 

• Work with Royal Tunbridge Wells Together Business 
Improvement District including promoting Royal Tunbridge 
Wells 

• RVP discussion on future redevelopment 

• Retain High Street public realm scheme  

• Bring forward employment space in the Town Hall 

• CCWG to review and plan out future for Assembly Hall 
Theatre 

• Maintain and develop working relationships with key 
partners, landowners & developers across borough 

• Deliver UK Shared Prosperity Fund Investment Plan 

• Lobby with partners and stakeholders to improve trading 
opportunities with Europe 

• Work with West Kent partners to update and promote key 
economic development priorities 

• Work with KMEP and WKP and other partners to lobby 
SELEP and Govt for delivery of key infrastructure 
improvements  

• Revise existing Economic Development Strategy post 
pandemic. business research completed 

• Support Local Plan and Transport Strategy at Public Inquiry 

• Delivery of amendments to road network to encourage 
walking and cycling 

• Revision to business focused portal on webpages  
 
 

 

P
age 22

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 3:  Contract management and delivery 
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Possible (3) / Major (4) 

Council unable to source contractor to deliver 

service within financial parameters / existing 

provider(s) ceases to provide service  
Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Andrew Hickey Officer Risk Owner Gary Stevenson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions 

• The Council has several long-term external 

contracts which were due to tender within the 

near future, specifically Grounds Maintenance 

(2024), Sports Centres (2027) and Waste 

(2027).   

• There are long-term financial parameters 

within which these contracts need to be let 

and delivered to. 

• Financial stability of existing contractors  

• Changes in level of competition in respective 

markets 

• Ability of contractors to recruit and retain 

qualified/experienced staff.  

• Impact of higher inflation on service costs.  

 

• Services disrupted or below agreed 
standards 

• Complaints 

• Adverse publicity and media 

• Potential for Contractor withdrawal 
or failure 

• Potential service failure 

• Disruption to services with business 
continuity arrangements required  

• Required to re-tender at short notice  

• Additional capacity and resources 
required at short notice 

• Reduction in completion and 
negative change in financial terms 
in forthcoming procurements 
 
 

• Extensions to Grounds Maintenance and Sports Centre 
Management agreed to provide time for markets to 
stabilise and service specifications to be reviewed in the 
light of future needs and finances 

• MTFS updated to reflect projected increases in cost of 
services   

• Contract supervision by TWBC 

• Contract terms requiring contractor to evidence 
supervision and performance 

• Variation to service where necessary to protect delivery 
of front line service. 

• Monitoring of company financial performance and 
relevant marketplace 

• . 

 

 

 

 

P
age 23

A
ppendix A



 

Risk Scenario 4:  Unable to plan financially over the longer term 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Possible (3) / Moderate (3) 

Longer term financial planning – risk of 

change adverse to plan of more than £1m 

across the medium term 
Target Likelihood/ Impact Possible (3) / Moderate (3) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Andrew Hickey Officer Risk Owner Lee Colyer 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions  

• The financial impact of the Covid-19 pandemic 
has seen a reduction of income streams. 

• Expenditure pressures continue to be felt from 
labour shortages, disruptions to the supply 
chains and higher inflation. 

• Inflation is forecast to reach 11 per cent whilst 
the council tax ‘cap’ is still at 2 per cent with 
the £5 de-minimis limit unchanged since 2013.  

• Revenue Support Grant remains at zero as 
the Government favours incentive-based 
schemes reliant on growth and for council’s to 
be financially self-sufficient. 

• The Secretary of State has announced that 
Local Government will have a two-year 
settlement covering 2023/24 and 2024/25 with 
consultations over the summer. 

• A structural budget gap remains.   

• Property costs consume a disproportionate 
amount of the available budget. 

• No major capital receipts have been received 
during since 2020 to help fund the capital 
programme. 

• There are local elections in May 2023. 

• Significant projected deficits over 
the medium-term. 

• Depletion of reserves 

• Unable to set a balanced budget 

• The financial viability of Local 
Government especially in two-tier 
areas. 

• Deteriorating local services. 

• Market failure and pushing up the 
cost and risk of contracted out 
services beyond the resources of 
the council. 

 

• The council’s starting position was sound with healthy 
reserves, no external debt, a balanced budget and a 
long track record of clean audit letters. 

• The audited outturn for 2021/22 shows that the council 
came within budget and did not need to use reserves. 

• The 2022/23 budget deficit stands at  £944,000. 
However, an In-year Budget Review report and 
proposed changes to sales, fees and charges is  
expected to reduce the call on reserves for the revenue 
budget.   

• The Section 25 Statement made clear that the drain on 
reserves from property assets is unsustainable and the 
Council must determine which assets are required and 
fit for purpose and those which should be sold or 
redeveloped.  

• The new administration has as their first priority to 
Safequard the council’s finances.  

• There will be a focus on core services and the 2023/24 
Budget will be presented to show those services that are 
statutory and those which are discretionary.. 

• The Council will continue to lobby government for 
financial flexibility and freedoms for councils to fund 
local services and make more decisions locally. 

• A cross party working group was established in 2019 to 
provide a political solution to the cost of the Civic Site. 

P
age 24

A
ppendix A



Cabinet have agreed to appoint a partner for the letting 
out of space within the Town Hall. 

• A Property Asset Oversight Panel has been established 
to extract value from land and property assets. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 25

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 5:  National policy changes in short term that impact negatively on TWBC  
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Possible (3) / Possible (3) 

Significant legislative or decision-making 

changes often with little notice adversely 

impact on the delivery of services and 

strategic planning.  

Target Likelihood/ Impact 

Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Ben Chapelard Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions  

• This risk stemmed from significant changes to 
the public sector environment and regulations 
that govern arising from Brexit and Covid. 

• Whilst short-term pressures and 
consequential decisions in relation to Brexit 
and Covid have passed, we continue to 
grapple with short-term changes associated 
with the government’s response to the ‘cost of 
living crisis’ and the Homes for Ukraine 
programme. 

• The risk also relates to competitive and short-
term funding pots which the government has 
been using to fund growth and regeneration. 
The Secretary of State has committed to 
review, reduce and simplify these funding 
arrangements and the Levelling Up and 
Regeneration Bill has now been published 
which sets out the Government’s proposed 
approach to working with and funding for local 
government.. 

• Whilst the publication of the Bill has provided 
some degree of certainty as to the likely future 
direction of travel, cost and inflationary 
pressures on local government and the 
general population means that there remains 
a risk of short-term changes to policy or 
direction (most recently demonstrated with the 

• A requirement to resource and 
implement national initiatives 
imposed with little notice and 
against a backdrop of resource 
scarcity.  

• Increased and unplanned 
requirement for resources and 
finances 

• Increased costs/reduced income 

• Lack of certainty on policy direction 
and finance 
 
 

• Flexibility encouraged amongst staff 

• Partnership working presents opportunities to 
collaborate on service delivery and address constraints 
on capacity 

• Engagement with the LGA, SOLACE, central 
government and parish councils 

• Work with Kent County Council and other Kent 
councils on these issues   

• Proactive work with representative bodies 

 

 

 

P
age 26

A
ppendix A



requirement to administer funding for those in 
lower banded Council Tax properties  
 
 

 

P
age 27

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 6: Service Interruption  

 
Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Likely (4) / Major (4) 

A major incident occurs which causes 

significant disruption to ability to deliver 

services 
Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Andrew Hickey Officer Risk Owner Denise Haylett 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions  

• Increased frequency of extreme weather   

• Increased threats from terrorism 

• Fire and other major events 

• Robustness and relevance of business 
continuity and emergency planning 
arrangements in an ever-changing threat 
environment 

• Possible impact from Brexit in respect of 
supply chain and labour disruption 

• Potential impact of the ‘cost of living crisis’ 
linked to rising inflation and energy costs. 

 

 

 

• Interruption to critical services 

• Potential service failure  

• Staff being pulled in different 
directions 

• Robustness of arrangements 
potentially questioned / challenged  

• Claims/Legal action/Compensation 

• Adverse publicity  

• National and local reputation 
affected 

• Financial loss 

• Exposure to fraud, ransom and 
denial of service 

• Potential government intervention 

• Staff absentees  

 

• Business Continuity Plan 

• Major Emergency Plan 

• Resilience through partnership working 

• Part of the Multi-Agency Agreement 

• Member of the Kent Resilience Forum 

• Review of Emergency Planning arrangements 

• www.kentprepared.org.uk  
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 28

A
ppendix A

http://www.kentprepared.org.uk/


Risk Scenario 7: Capacity fails to keep pace with ambition 
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Likely (4) / Major (4) 

 

Risk that capacity fails to keep pace with ambition 
Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Andrew Hickey Officer Risk Owner William Benson  

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions  

• The Council has reduced staff numbers and 
resources but is under pressure to do more with even 
less money. With no government grant, the Council 
relies on income to deliver services and some of 
these income streams are being challenged as being 
detrimental to the local economy (e.g. Business 
Rates and car parking). 

• The Council is carrying a significant number of staff 
vacancies due to an inability to recruit and a need to 
balance the revenue budget. Those vacancies are 
concentrated in a number of areas and the Council is 
placing particular reliance on a number of key people. 

• High numbers of vacancies in the local area and local 
government sector, coupled with differential pay 
increases in other public sector bodies and the 
private sector mean that we are likely to continue to 
face pressure and turnover. 

• The local community has high expectations and is 
demanding when service delivery in interrupted or 
changed. 

• A new political administration has been elected with a 
new set of priorities.  
 
 

• Personal impacts – stress, 
burnout, loss of wellbeing 

• Impact on morale 

• Reliance on key and fewer 
people 

• Unavailability / loss of key staff 

• Impact on key projects and / or 
day to day delivery  

• Services/staff are stretched 

• Impact on service quality 

• Satisfaction diminished 

• Major programme / projects not 
delivered as expected 

• Adverse publicity 

• Political impact 

• Damage to reputation 

• Loss of confidence from the 
private sector and partner 
organisations. 
 

• Regular consideration by Management Board of 
resources; additional resources put in place to 
support priorities  

• Introduction of a Programme Management Office to 
oversee priority projects 

• Appropriate use of external capacity and expertise 

• Performance monitoring to identify pressure points 

• Improving resilience through partnerships 

• Adopting an ‘enabling’ approach to encourage 
community to deliver local services 

• Work with political groups to understand, prioritise 
and deliver political priorities and to ensure that the 
financial and staff capacity is in place to support 
them. 
 

  

P
age 29

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 8: Local Plan adoption – housing  
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Possible (3) / Major (4) 

Local Plan not adopted effectively, and 

housing not delivered in right areas / types Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Hugo Pound Officer Risk Owner Nicola Watters 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Action  

• Resistance to housing growth locally  

• Having to meet significantly increased needs 
in a constrained environment (green belt / 
AONB / flooding / transport infrastructure) 

• Public opposition to particular allocation sites 

• Potential changes in political support for Local 
Plan: movement from, cross party support in 
February 2020 Full Council decision 

• Requests to accommodate “unmet” 
development needs from neighbouring or 
other authorities with similar/greater areas of 
constraint.  There remains uncertainty, in 
particular around Sevenoaks District Council’s 
future approach to meeting housing need 
through development of their new Local Plan, 
although recent work by TWBC has reduced 
this. At present, it is the Council’s view that 
there is no unmet need from Sevenoaks. 

• Targeted actions from particular, 
bodies/stakeholder’s to oppose levels of 
growth set out in Submission Local Plan 
(SLP), including in responses to planning 
applications  

• The views of the Planning Inspector on 
neighbouring authorities whose draft local 
plans do not meet the housing target levels 
are relevant to this Council, or their scope to 
accommodate housing that otherwise will 

• Significant new costs to support production 
of revised Local Plan if there is a rejection of 
the plan by an Inspector at Examination 

• Long term delays to Local Plan production 
could see Secretary of State intervention 

• Until Local Plan is adopted, potential likely 
increase in level of housing on unallocated 
greenfield sites, including by housing 
developers whose operating model is one 
which provides lower quality design  

• Risk of “vicious cycle” of planning by appeal 
potentially leading to loss of local decision 
making ultimately Council loses control of 
situation 

• Member and community dissatisfaction 

• Potential significant financial implications 
associated with appeals following refusal of 
major residential development – each such 
appeal costs £50 - 100k plus and exposes 
the Council to risks of further costs awards 
to the appellant of £100k plus 

• Reputational consequences – if borough is 
seen as not having certainty over planning 
decisions then decreased appetite for 
business/capital investment  

• Legal consequences 

• Lack of affordable housing delivery 

• Affordability gap gets worse 

• The Local Plan has progressed to Stage 2 in line with 
the revised Local Development Scheme (LDS) and 
was approved with cross-party support for 
submission.   

• It was submitted to the Planning Inspectorate in 
November 2021 and the Examination has 
commenced. The Examination has formed two 
stages. Stage One finished in March 2022. The 
Inspector took a short pause commencing Stage Two 
in May 2022, which has resulted in a two-month delay 
against the approved timetable. The Stage Two 
hearings are due to finish by 19th July 2022. The 
timetable slippage will need to be updated in a new 
LDS in due course. A new LDS is likely to be 
approved at the time any Main Modifications are 
approved for public consultation. 

• Whilst the Local Plan is progressed, regard is being 
had in determination of planning applications to seek 
to provide a robust supply and delivery of housing 
and employment floorspace.  In Q4 2020/21 there 
were several decisions whereby permission has been 
refused on sites proposed for allocation in the PSLP 
which is reducing the effectiveness of this 
control/mitigation.  Establishing and maintaining a 
robust five-year (plus) supply of housing is and will be 
a key control moving forward   

• Several recent dismissed appeals have demonstrated 
on major development proposals has demonstrated 
that decision making is justified.   

P
age 30

A
ppendix A



require Green Belt release or major 
development in the AONB 

• Judicial Review of decisions 

• Results of the housing delivery test, which has 
punitive measures for under-delivery 

• There is a risk of speculative planning 
applications/appeals, particularly on those 
sites not proposed for allocation in the SLP.  
Risk increases when Council cannot 
demonstrate a five-year supply of 
housing/failure to meet the housing delivery 
test. 

• The potential changes, increased uncertainty 
and consequential impact on service 
operation and delivery, associated with the 
Government’s consultations on national 
changes to the planning system (autumn 
2020) comprise significant (medium-long 
term) additional vulnerability factors.     

• Financial benefit of planned growth – 
opportunity impact 

• Increased traffic congestion 

• Impact on delivery of infrastructure 

• Service delivery affected. 
Impact on staff recruitment and retention 

• Given progress of Local Plan and recent appeal 
decisions likelihood factor adjusted to possible.    

• Measures in place to ensure high levels of co-
ordination between Planning Policy, Strategic Sites 
and Development Management functions 

• Regular reporting to Planning Policy Working 
Group/Cabinet member/ Planning Committee on risk 
and legislative changes 

• Ensuring regular and constructive Duty to Co-operate 
meetings with neighbouring authorities, with 
approach adapted to reflect Inspectors’ findings from 
examination of other authorities’ Local Plans 

• Using the Planning Advisory Service, Planning 
Inspectorate advisory visits, discussions with the 
Department for Levelling Up Housing and 
Communities (DLUHC) and heeding the views of the 
Inspectorate from neighbour’s draft plans 

P
age 31

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 9:  The Amelia Scott 

 
Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Possible (3) / Major (3) 

The project not delivered to plan, budget and 

benefits Target Likelihood/ Impact Possible (3) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Wendy Fitzsimmons Officer Risk Owner Paul Taylor 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions 

• Delivering an integrated service that meets 

the aspirations of all stakeholders e.g., KCC, 

TWBC, NLHF, Arts Council 

• Success of the project is dependent on 

reaching a wider demographic 

• TWBC has the ‘financial risk’ and 

management of delivery and ongoing 

provision 

• Performance of consultants and contractors 

• Significant economic climate and shocks 

including Brexit and the Covid-19 pandemic 

on delivery, procurement, and operation, and 

therefore capital and ongoing revenue costs 

• Internal capacity to deliver 

• Non-delivery of funding strategy 

• Medium term impact of covid on Fundraising 

and Business Plan. 

 

• Time delay and cost over-run 

• Potentially loss of funding from NLHF/Arts 
Council 

• Reputational impacts 

• Relationship issue with TWBC and KCC 

• Impact of front-line service delivery  

• Impact of cost consultant and design team 
errors on financial and budget management 

• Contractor contract overrun delaying hand 
over 

• Market impacts potential increased costs of all 
project work streams  

• Unfunded “abnormal” costs due to contract 
errors 

• Closure of site due to Covid-19 

• Change requests generate costs in terms of 
design, fees, materials and works 

• Risk of disparity between new fit out design 
and construction design 

• Financial gap due to fundraising and other 
opportunities not being secured 
 

• Project Board, formal internal project 

management structures in place including 

TWBC Programme Board 

• Member engagement through ASMOP 

• Detailed funding strategy, Trust established. 

Regular Fund-raising meetings in place with the 

Fundraising Trust 

• Construction and Fit Out practical completion 

achieved. Programmes of final works in place 

• Secured £1.4m GBF funding ensuring 

fundraising and other opportunities underwritten 

by TWBC are sourced 

• Project management and professional advisors 

to the Council in place 

• Monitoring of announcements on Covid-19 

• Detailed risk registers regularly reviewed, 

updated and actions undertaken 

• Finalisation of capital budget with settlement of 

final account  

• Regular engagement and reporting to NLHF, 

Arts Council and SELEP 

• Business Plan and integrated services in place 

for current year  

 

P
age 32

A
ppendix A



 Risk Scenario 10:  Climate Change 
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/Impact Likely (4) / Major (4) 

Climate Change is a global emergency and 

solving it is beyond our capability. In 

declaring a Climate Emergency, we are taking 

a proactive approach and working towards 

being carbon neutral by 2030. We are 

addressing this risk through taking a strategic 

approach whilst mitigating the impact and 

adapting to the change. 

Target Likelihood/ Impact Possible (3) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Luke Everitt Officer Risk Owner Paul Taylor 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/ Actions 

• Severe weather is already affecting public 

services across the UK, with operational, 

reputational, financial and legal 

consequences. 

• Climate change is expected to continue and 

worsen in the future, with changes to mean 

temperatures, the increasing frequency and 

severity of storms and higher rainfall levels in 

winter potentially causing rising water levels 

and resulting in more flooding and coastal 

erosion. Additionally, hotter drier summers, 

with heat waves and reduced rainfall. 

• There is also an ongoing impact of severe 

winter weather including snowfall and 

freezing temperatures which impact service 

delivery and the integrity of our roads open 

space and buildings infrastructure. 

• National sustainability commitments may be 

deferred or abandoned as an emphasis on 

• Increased likelihood of flooding impacting on 
properties  

• Kent at risk of water shortages/drought. 

• Extreme weather (heat and cold) impacting 
vulnerable residents 

• Extreme weather having a greater impact on 
the day to day delivery of services 

• Detrimental impact on the local environment 

• An increased frequency of severe weather 
conditions may lead to more instances of 
damage to Council infrastructure and 
property. 

• Adverse impact on the local economy if 
businesses are unable to operate. 

• Dissatisfaction amongst residents for not 
meeting expectations 
 

• Climate Emergency declared 

• CO2 emissions audit from council operations 
undertaken and will be reviewed in 2022. 

• Carbon descent plan agreed and annual 
action plan in place with annual review and 
update. 

• Successful £1.4m bid to the Government’s 
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme to 
fund heat decarbonisation and energy 
efficiency measures in Council properties 

• Cross party Climate Emergency Advisory 
Panel (CEAP) set up 

• Draft Local Plan Policies 

• Business Continuity and Emergency Plans in 
place for severe weather 

• Adopted Kent Environment Strategy October 
2016 (CAB98/16) 

• Air Quality Action Plan 2018 – 2023 

• Warm Homes programme – improved energy 
efficiency (s106 approved) 

• Tackling fuel poverty – Fuel Poverty Strategy 

• Collective Solar – partnership with KCC  

P
age 33

A
ppendix A



economic growth is prioritised post Covid-19. 

A traditional recovery will be dirtier, less 

efficient, harm economic growth and hinder 

progress on environmental improvements. 

• Increase in private car use for commuting in 

favour of public transport. 

• Energy Deal (not direct energy reduction but 
aids cutting fuel costs) ongoing  

• Low carbon heating (e.g. Off – gas grid 
homes/District heat network rollout) 

• Identify and maximise the opportunities for 
change that will come from the experience of 
Covid-19 restrictions such as green 
infrastructure, including cycle lanes and 
recognising the social infrastructure around 
health and well-being, new ways of working, 
which include less commuting, working from 
and near home, accelerating digital 
transformation to ensure adaptive capacity 
and equity of access   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 34

A
ppendix A



Risk Scenario 11: Pandemic 
 

Risk Description:  Current Likelihood/ Impact Possible (3) /Moderate (2) 

Longer-term impact of a pandemic on the 

Borough and the local community/economy 
Target Likelihood/ Impact Unlikely (2) / Minor (2) 

Member Risk 

Owner 

Andrew  Hickey Officer Risk Owner William Benson 

Vulnerability/ Contributing factors Potential Impact/ Consequences Current Controls/ Mitigations in place/Actions  

• Whilst all Covid restrictions have now been 
lifted, there remain risks from new variants of 
concern. 

• Even though Tunbridge Wells has been 
relatively resilient to past economic shocks, 
the Pandemic has inflicted significant harm on 
some sectors of the community and economy 
and is likely to have exacerbated social and 
economic inequalities. 

• Independent analysis has shown that district 
councils have been ‘under-compensated’ for 
Covid-related costs and loss of income and 
TWBC is vulnerable to losses of income given 
the loss of its government grant and its 
reliance on sales, fees and charges. 

 

• The Council being able to effectively 
function. 

• Impact on the local economy and 
consequentially on Business Rates. 

• Social and economic inequalities 
widening with increased 
unemployment, gaps in educational 
attainment, issues with mental 
health and wellbeing etc. 

• Increased dependency on relief 
measures (including food banks and 
the community hub). 

• Some charitable organisations 
closing and not-reopening.  

• Fatigue amongst staff and key 
partners.  

• The production of a Town Centre Action Plan to help 
plan and manage the future vitality of Royal Tunbridge 
Wells. 

• Close working relationships with businesses and their 
representatives to understand and address the 
challenges they are facing. 

 

 

 

P
age 35

A
ppendix A



 

Page  

1 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 

 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22  

For Audit & Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022

 

Summary 

Lead Member: Cllr Ben Chapelard, Leader of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy & Development 

Head of Service: Andrew Townsend – interim Head of Audit Partnership 

Report Author: Andrew Townsend – interim Head of Audit Partnership 

Classification: Public document (non-exempt) 

Wards Affected: All 

Approval Timetable Date 

Audit & Governance Committee 26 July 2022 

Recommendations 

Officer recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder: 

1. That the Audit & Governance Committee notes the interim Head of Audit 

Partnership’s opinion.  

2. That the Audit & Governance Committee notes the work underlying the opinion 

and the interim Head of Audit Partnership’s assurance of its independent 

completion in conformance with proper standards.  

 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



 

Page  

2 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 

 

1. Introduction and Background 

1.1  Internal audit is a compulsory service for authorities as set out by Regulation 5 of 

the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. The principal objective of internal 

audit as described in that Regulation is: “[to] undertake [audit work] to evaluate 

the effectiveness of […] risk management, control and governance processes, 

taking into account public sector internal auditing standards and guidance”. 

1.2 This report delivers the Head of Internal Audit annual reporting directed by the 

Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the “Standards”). The report includes the 

Head of Audit Partnership’s annual opinion on the overall adequacy and 

effectiveness of the Council’s framework of governance, risk management and 

control. This opinion feeds into the Annual Governance Statement for 2021/22. 

1.3 The Standards, in particular Standard 2450 (Overall Opinions) direct the annual 

report to include: 

• The annual audit opinion 

• A summary of work completed that supports the opinion, and 

• A statement on conformation with Standards. 

1.4 We have completed the work set out in the plan in full conformance with the 

Standards. We have also worked independently, free from undue influence of 

either officers or Members. 

1.5 As those charged with overseeing governance, the Audit & Governance 

Committee must consider the Annual Internal Audit Opinion. 

2. Preferred Option and Reason 

2.1 The interim Head of Audit Partnership is satisfied the Council can place 

assurance on the system of control in place during 2021/22. The Committee is 

asked to note this opinion. 

2.2 The full Annual Report for 2021/22 is attached as an Appendix. This report 

includes a summary of all work conducted to support the opinion and affirms the 

independence and effectiveness of the internal audit service. 

2.3 We present the opinion and associated report for noting and for Members to 

consider alongside their evaluation of associated year end reports into the 

Council’s finance and governance. This report does not seek any substantive 

decision or action from the Council as a direct result. 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



 

Page  

3 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 

 

3. Consultation 

3.1 We consult and agree with relevant Heads of Service before finishing all findings 

and recommendations arising from individual audit engagements. The headline 

messages in our report have been discussed with the Management Board and 

have been shared to help prepare the Annual Governance Statement. 

4. Appendices and Background Documents 

 Appendices: 

• Appendix A:Internal Audit Annual Report 2021 2022 

Background Papers: 

•  Full reports which support the audit engagements summarised in this annual 

report are available. 

5. Cross Cutting Issues 

This report and opinion are for noting and to support consideration of other year end 

reporting into the Council’s finances and governance. It does not propose or prescribe 

any specific action as a result. Therefore this report has no specific impact in any of 

these areas but instead below is a general commentary on issues relevant to each 

heading. 

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act) 

This report helps fulfil the Council’s legal obligations under the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 for having an internal audit service that conforms to relevant 

Standards. 

B. Finance and Other Resources 

We carried out the work programme within agreed resources. 

C. Staffing 

We completed the work programme using staff employed by Maidstone Borough 

Council as the host authority for the shared service, supplemented with contractor 

support procured in accordance with Maidstone’s financial regulations and overseen by 

audit management. 

D. Risk Management 

The audit plan drew on the Council’s risk management in considering areas for audit 

review. In turn, audit findings will provide feedback on identification and management of 

risk. 

E. Environment and Sustainability 

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



 

Page  

4 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22 

 

No direct implications, though the Committee may wish to note that owing to the COVID 

pandemic a significant element of the audit work was carried out remotely. 

F. Community Safety 

No direct implications. 

G. Equalities 

No direct implications. 

H. Data Protection 

All information collected by the service was done in line with the data protection policy 

of our host authority (Maidstone BC). 

I. Health and Safety 

No direct implications. 

J. Health and Wellbeing 

No direct implications. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

Annual Internal Audit Report 
and 

Opinion 2021/22 
 
 
 

May 2022 

Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Introduction 

1. This is the 2021/22 Annual Report by Mid Kent Audit on the internal control 

environment at Tunbridge Wells Borough Council (‘the Council’). The annual internal 

audit report summaries the outcomes of the reviews that have carried out on the 

Council’s framework of governance, risk management and internal control and is 

designed to assist the Council making its annual governance statement.  

2. This report provides the annual head of audit opinion (‘Opinion statement’) and a 

summary of the key factors taken into consideration in arriving at the Head of Audit 

Opinion statement, as at 31 May 2022. This includes incorporation of the CIPFA 

guidance on the potential limitation of scope brought about by the impact of COVID-

19.  

Head of Internal Audit Opinion statement 

3. The Head of Audit Opinion draws on the work carried out by Mid Kent Audit 

during the year on the effectiveness of managing those risks identified by the 

Council and covered by the audit programme or associated assurance. Not all 

risks fall within the agreed work programme. For risks not directly examined 

reliance has been taken, where appropriate, from other associated sources of 

assurance to support the Opinion statement (an explanatory note is included at 

Annex A).  

4. The Head of Audit Opinion statement for 2021/22 is: 

The planned programme of work delivered by internal audit was constrained by 

the impact of the COVID pandemic restrictions and significant staffing changes 

within the internal audit team. The results of the reduced level of internal audit 

work concluded during the year required me to seek additional assurances to 

form my opinion. A summary of where it has been possible to place reliance on 

the work of other assurance providers is presented in the annual internal audit 

report. Utilising all these forms of assurance I am able to draw a positive 

conclusion as to the adequacy and effectiveness of Tunbridge Wells Borough 

Council’s risk management, control and governance processes. In my opinion, 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council has adequate and effective management, 

control and governance processes in place to manage the achievement of their 

objectives. 

Matters impacting upon the Opinion statement 

5. Organisations design internal controls to manage to an acceptable level rather than 

remove the risk of failing to achieve objectives. Consequently, internal controls can 

Page 41

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

only provide reasonable and not complete assurance of effectiveness. Designing 

internal controls is a continuing exercise designed to identify and set priorities 

around the risks to the Council achieving its objectives. The work of designing 

internal controls also evaluates the likelihood of those risks coming about and 

managing the impact should they do so. 

6. Mid Kent Audit recognises the considerable challenges and the difficult decisions 

that the Council had to deal with during 2021/22, however, the professional and 

regulatory expectations on public bodies to ensure that their internal audit 

arrangements, including providing the annual Opinion statement, conform with 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) have not changed.  

7. Factors that need to be taken in to account in reaching the Opinion statement 

include: 

 Changes in ways of working: Have these led to gaps in the governance, 

risk management and control arrangements?  

 Independence of internal audit: Have any limitations in the scope of 

individual audit assignments resulted in it only being possible to place 

partial assurance on the outcome? 

 Internal audit coverage: Has any reduction in internal audit coverage 

compared to what was planned resulted in insufficient assurance work? 

Changes in ways of working  

8. The following are the main considerations which impacted upon the provision of 

the Opinion statement for 2021/22. These are not in any priority order and in a 

number of cases there is an inter-relationship between two or more of these 

considerations. 

 The impact of COVID-19 on many organisations has continued to be felt 

throughout 2021/22 with restrictions continuing to be applied. These 

have impacted staff availability and organisational capacity.  

 Remote working and greater use of digital forms of operation and 

communication had to be instigated in a period of months, rather than 

the years which would normally be the case for such major changes.  

 New systems to assist in mitigating the impact of the pandemic on the 

local community had to be implemented at short notice using existing 

staff resources, which diverted them from their normal duties. It is 

acknowledged that this has affected some organisations more than 

others.   

Page 42

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 The significant increase in cyber attacks against all organisations to obtain 

unauthorised access to data and the consequential need for ongoing 

updating and vigilance in terms of security of data held. 

Independence of internal audit 

9. Mid Kent Audit works as a shared service between Ashford, Maidstone, Swale and 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Councils. A Shared Service Board including 

representatives from each Council supervises the service under a collaboration 

agreement. 

10. Within the Council during 2021/22 Mid Kent Audit has continued to enjoy complete 

and unfettered access to officers and records to complete its work. On no occasion 

have officers or Members sought or gained undue influence over the scope or 

findings of any of the work carried out. 

Internal audit coverage 

11. Mid Kent Audit has experienced significant turnover of staff throughout the 

financial year, including the departure of both the Head of Audit and Deputy Head 

of Audit. Timely action was taken to appoint interims to all the senior 

management positions, but it is acknowledged that a significant level of local 

knowledge and experience of the Council was lost during the year. 

12. The Council’s Audit and Governance Committee approved the 2021/22 Audit & 

Assurance Plan on 24 August 2021. The selection, prioritising and scoping of the 

audit reviews in this Plan was overseen by the then Head of the Audit Partnership. 

13. There has been impairment in terms of the planned internal audit coverage for 

2021/22. This has been due to the knock-on effect of the late completion of the 

2020/21 planned work and the significant churn in terms of staff within Mid Kent 

Audit. There were also a number of reviews which have either been deferred or 

cancelled at the request of management. As a consequence a number of the audit 

reviews set out in the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan have not been completed in time 

to inform the 2021/22 Opinion Statement. One such impairment is that no ICT 

internal audit reviews were completed in the year. This is a timing matter, rather 

than systematic of any issue in respect to the Council’s governance, risk and control 

framework. The team at Mid Kent Audit has worked diligently at the delivering the 

work and this timing issue is not a reflection upon the efforts of the current team. 

  

Page 43

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Arriving at the Opinion statement 

Reliance on internal audit work performed  

14. Audit evidence to support the Opinion statement on internal control is derived 

principally through completing the reviews set out within the agreed Audit Plan. 

The 2021/22 Audit & Assurance Plan provided for 17 reviews to be carried out.  

15. For the reasons explained in paragraph 13, above, only nine of these reviews were 

completed in time to inform the 2021/22 Opinion statement. These reviews are 

shown in the table below. Of these there were no reviews where the assurance 

grading was either ‘Poor’ or ‘Weak’. There were no Priority 1 (Critical) Actions 

which affects (negatively) the risk rating assigned to a Council strategic risk or 

seriously impairs its ability to achieve a key priority. 

1. Audit Review Priority 
Assurance 

assessment  

Number of Actions 

1 2 3 4 

Homelessness H Sound - - 2 1 

Investment & Commercial Properties H Sound - - 1 4 

Planning Enforcement H Sound - - 2 2 

Waste Collection H Sound - - 3 3 

Procurement H Sound - - 5 2 

Apprenticeships M Sound - - - 2 

Payroll & Expenses M Sound - - - - 

Public Consultations M Sound - - 2 3 

Theatre Operations M Sound - - - 7 

16. A summary of the Assurance assessments and Action priority level definitions is 

provided in Annex B.  

17. An overview of the key findings from each of the finalised reviews for which details 

have not been previously provided in the 2021/22 Progress Report to the Audit 

and Governance Committee is provided in Annex C. These finding do not indicate 

any significant Council-wide weaknesses in the corporate governance, risk or 

control framework. 

18. A reconciliation to the work performed to the approved Audit & Assurance Plan 

for 2021/22 is provided in Annex D. 

Reliance on other sources of assurance  

19. Where appropriate, reliance has been placed upon previous internal audit work 

and other work performed by Mid Kent Audit, including:  

Page 44

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 The unqualified 2020/21 Opinion statement is dated August 2021 and 

therefore effectively includes coverage of the first five months of the 

2021/22 financial year. Furthermore, the equivalent of an interim head of 

audit opinion for the Council was obtained from the then Head of the Audit 

Partnership at the time of their departure. This interim opinion covered the 

period April – December 2021 and raised no matters of concern.  

 The findings of previous years’ internal audit work carried out (paras 20 & 

21 below refers). 

 The outcomes of the follow up work carried out to confirm control 

weaknesses identified by internal audit have been effectively mitigated 

(paras 22 - 23 below refers). 

 The outcomes of the consultancy, investigations and counter fraud work 

carried out by Mid Kent Audit for the Council (paras 24 - 26 below refers). 

 Mid Kent Audit’s interim Deputy Head of Audit’s work on the risk 

management arrangements at the Council (para 27 below refers).  

20. Previous years’ internal audit work: Since April 2020 there have been no audit 

reviews carried out by Mid Kent Audit where there were assurance assessments of 

‘weak’ or ‘poor’.  

21. There were four reviews from the 2020/21 Audit Assurance Plan which were not 

completed until 2021/22 and therefore these reviews have been used to assist in 

informing the 2021/22 Opinion statement. Summaries of the findings arising from 

these reviews were reported to the November 2021 meeting of the Audit and 

Governance Committee. These reviews are: 

2. Audit Review 
Assurance 

assessment  

Number of 
Recommendations 

1 2 3 4 

Programme Management Sound - - - 1 

Budgetary Control Sound - - 1 2 

Development Management Sound - - 1 2 

Environmental Enforcement- air quality Sound - - - 2 

22. Following up Actions: Recommendations (Actions) are made in the audit reports 

to further strengthen the control environment in the area reviewed. Management 

provide responses as to how the risk identified is to be mitigated. Throughout the 

year Mid Kent Audit carried out checks to ascertain the extent to which the agreed 

Actions had been addressed by management and that the risk exposure identified 

has been mitigated.  

Page 45

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

23. During 2021/22 47 Actions which had planned completion dates which had passed 

were followed up and the table below summarises the extent to which the 

identified risk exposure have been mitigated. These 47 recommendations include 

all the Actions either made in 2020/21, or carried forward from a previous 

financial year. There were no Priority 1 (Critical) and only two Priority 2 (High) 

Actions and, as set out below, the Council has accepted the risk exposure on these 

two Actions. This indicates that there are no high risk exposure Actions made in 

2020/21, or earlier, where there remains a material unmitigated controls risk 

position.   

3. Extent of control risk mitigation 

Number of Actions by 
priority grading 

1 2 3 4 

Opening number - 2 19 26 

Current status: Cleared - - 12 19 

 Not yet due to be actioned - -   4   4 

 Not yet actioned - -   3   1 

 Closed - Council accepts risk - 2 -    2 

24. Outcomes of other work carried out by Mid Kent Audit: Mid Kent Audit provides 

an independent counter fraud service for the Council. This service excludes 

benefits investigation work which is carried out by Mid Kent Services. The 

following counter fraud work was carried out during 2021/22: 

 No matters were raised with Mid Kent Audit in relation to concerns under the 

Public Interest Disclosure Act. 

 Significant levels of checking on data matching matters arising as part of the 

National Fraud Initiative have been carried out and reported to the Council. From 

the work to date no material internal control deficiencies were identified from 

this data matching work. Some matters identified will be included in an internal 

audit review planned for the first quarter of 2022/23. 

 One investigation into a query raised by a Councillor was carried out by Mid Kent 

Audit and no material internal control deficiencies were identified.  

25. There were no matters identified through the counter fraud work carried out 

which have a material impact upon the corporate governance, risk and internal 

control framework of the Council. 

26. Work was carried out on the COVID-19 Local Authority Compliance and 

Enforcement Grant for Lower Tier and Unitary Authorities Determination 2020 

No31/5216 Certification - Consultancy. The then Head of the Audit Partnership 

reviewed the certification completed by the Council on COVID grant spend and in 

Page 46

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

May 2021 provided a formal audit opinion which confirmed it was in line with 

COVID 19 related enforcement and compliance activity. 

27. Outcomes of risk management work carried out by Mid Kent Audit: Mid Kent Audit 

provides an independent risk management service for the Council, specifically in 

relation to operational risk management. During 2021/22 the Council has been 

introducing a new Risk Management Framework and identifying its operational risks. 

This exercise is currently underway and future reporting of operational risk 

information is to be determined. It is noted that throughout the year the Director of 

Finance, Policy and Development has routinely reported strategic risks to the Audit 

and Governance Committee. 

Reliance on other sources of assurance  

28. For the reasons set out earlier in the Report it has been necessary for 2021/22 to 

place some reliance upon a number of ‘other assurance providers’ and these are 

summarised below: 

 The work of the MKS benefits fraud team and other corporate monitoring 

teams (para 29 below refer). 

 The outcomes of external reviews of the Council’s ICT systems (para 30 

refers). 

 The external audit fraud risk return completed by management (para 31 

below refers). 

 The annual audit letter from the external auditor for 2020/21 which did not 

identify any material governance, risk or control matters. 

29. The MKS Fraud and Compliance team has advised that their work during 2021/22 

did not identify any diminution in the overall control environment for the Council’s 

systems, in terms of the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 

duties and that no significant internal controls failures which have led to fraud losses 

were identified. 

30. Assurance that the cyber security arrangements have been considered has been 

obtained from the Public Services Network Code of Connection Internal Security 

Report which was carried out in March 2021 by an independent external 

organisation.  

31. The external audit return for 2021/22 (‘Informing the audit risk assessment for 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 2021/22’) compiled by the Council’s finance team 

was reviewed and this not identify any diminution in the overall control 

environment for the Council’s systems, in terms of the existence of internal controls, 

Page 47

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

including segregation of duties and that no significant internal controls failures 

which have led to fraud losses had been identified. 

MKA 

32. Information on Mid Kent Audit which supports the delivery of the internal audit 

and other work carried out in the financial year is summarised in Annex E. Overall, 

despite the significant staffing changes during the year Mid Kent Audit has 

maintained a PSIAS compliant service and there has been no diminution in the 

robustness of the work performed. 

Acknowledgements 

33. Managers, Officers and Members are thanked for their continued support 

throughout the year which has assisted in the efficient delivery of the audit 

work.  

Page 48

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex A 

Other sources of assurance for 2021/22 

The corporate governance, risk and control framework  

The corporate governance, risk and control framework for the Council is dynamic and there 

will be changes to the processes throughout the year. The key consideration for arriving at 

the annual Head of Audit Opinion is the materially of any changes in terms of possibly 

increasing the exposure of the Council to activities and decisions which do not conform with 

the approved strategies and policies. 

Obtaining additional sources of assurance  

Due to the impact of the COVID Pandemic CIPFA has provided guidance on utilising other 

forms of assurance to support arriving at a Head of Audit Opinion. This means that where 

the agreed internal audit plan of work has not been fully carried out additional assurances 

can be obtained from ‘other assurance providers’ (this being the CIPFA terminology). 

Three lines of defence 

The three lines of defence model, below, explains how the level of assurance that can be 

taken by the Head of Audit reduces if the source of assurance is from the second line of 

defence and reduces even further if it is from the third line of defence.  

 

As a consequence the additional assurance utilised to assist in supporting the 2021/22 Head 

of Audit Opinion has only relied upon second line of defence sources of assurance (i.e. where 

the author is not directly involved in the day-to-day operation of the corporate governance, 

risk and control arrangements they are reporting upon). 

 

Page 49

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reduction in reliance due to passage of time 

Due to the dynamic nature of the corporate governance, risk and control framework for the 

Council the reliance which can be placed on forms of assurance reduces as time passes. This 

has particularly been the case over the last two financial years with all the short-notice 

changes that were made to respond to the business disruption due to the COVID 19 

pandemic.  

As a consequence the additional assurance placed on work carried out prior to the start of 

2021/22 has been kept to a minimum. 

  

Page 50

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex B 

Assurance & Priority level definitions 

Assurance Ratings 2021/22 (Unchanged from 2014/15) 

 

Full Definition Short Description 

Strong – Controls within the service are well designed and operating as 
intended, exposing the service to no uncontrolled risk. There will also 
often be elements of good practice or value for money efficiencies which 
may be instructive to other authorities. Reports with this rating will have 
few, if any; recommendations and those will generally be priority 4. 

Service/system is 
performing well 

Sound – Controls within the service are generally well designed and 
operated but there are some opportunities for improvement, particularly 
with regard to efficiency or to address less significant uncontrolled 
operational risks. Reports with this rating will have some priority 3 and 4 
recommendations, and occasionally priority 2 recommendations where 
they do not speak to core elements of the service. 

Service/system 
is operating 
effectively 

Weak – Controls within the service have deficiencies in their design and/or 
operation that leave it exposed to uncontrolled operational risk and/or 
failure to achieve key service aims. Reports with this rating will have mainly 
priority 2 and 3 recommendations which will often describe weaknesses with 
core elements of the service. 

Service/system 
requires support to 
consistently 
operate effectively 

Poor – Controls within the service are deficient to the extent that the 
service is exposed to actual failure or significant risk and these failures and 
risks are likely to affect the Council as a whole. Reports with this rating will 
have priority 1 and/or a range of priority 2 recommendations which, taken 
together, will or are preventing from achieving its core objectives. 

Service/system is not 
operating effectively 

 

Finding Gradings 2021/22 (Unchanged from 2014/15) 

 

Priority 1 (Critical) – To address a finding which affects (negatively) the risk rating assigned to a 

Council strategic risk or seriously impairs its ability to achieve a key priority. Priority 1 

recommendations are likely to require immediate remedial action. Priority 1 recommendations 

also describe actions the authority must take without delay. 

Priority 2 (High) – To address a finding which impacts a strategic risk or key priority, which makes 

achievement of the Council’s aims more challenging but not necessarily cause severe impediment. 

This would also normally be the priority assigned to recommendations that address a finding that 

the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of a legal responsibility, unless the consequences of 

non-compliance are severe. Priority 2 recommendations are likely to require remedial action at 

the next available opportunity, or as soon as is practical. Priority 2 recommendations also 

describe actions the authority must take. 

Priority 3 (Medium) – To address a finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of 

its own policy or a less prominent legal responsibility but does not impact directly on a strategic 

Page 51

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

risk or key priority. There will often be mitigating controls that, at least to some extent, limit 

impact. Priority 3 recommendations are likely to require remedial action within six months to a 

year. Priority 3 recommendations describe actions the authority should take. 

Priority 4 (Low) – To address a finding where the Council is in (actual or potential) breach of its own 

policy but no legal responsibility and where there is trivial, if any, impact on strategic risks or key 

priorities. There will usually be mitigating controls to limit impact. Priority 4 recommendations are 

likely to require remedial action within the year. Priority 4 recommendations generally describe 

actions the authority could take. 

Advisory – We will include in the report notes drawn from our experience across the partner 

authorities where the service has opportunities to improve. These will be included for the service 

to consider and not be subject to formal follow up process. 

  

Page 52

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex C 

Summary of Audit Findings 

 

Homelessness  

(This review was reported to the Audit & Governance Committee in November 2021) 

Investment & Commercial Properties  

Sound 

We found the Property and Estates Team consists of experienced individuals who are appropriately 

qualified with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). This experience and affiliation to 

RICS helps guide decision making to ensure income is maximised. 

Our testing identified properties are promptly marketed, tenancy agreements are in place and rents 

are routinely reviewed. Officers actively monitor debt and take recovery action although there are no 

debt recovery procedures in place. 

The Service currently uses Uniform as its monitoring system, which has a limited reporting 

functionality. The Service is in the process of transferring to Tech Forge and once complete should 

investigate and implement better reporting to ensure enhanced overall scrutiny. The Service should 

also introduce regular reconciliation between the asset register and the property billing report to 

ensure rent is appropriately charged for all properties. 

Planning Enforcement 

Sound 

The Council encourages and facilitates reports of suspected breaches in planning legislation, and 

investigation is carried out by experienced officers. Testing showed proactive action when reports 

are received, and a good level of communication with subjects and complainants to see cases 

through to conclusion. 

We found a lack of procedural guidance on recording reports which may explain some discrepancies 

identified during testing. There is also a lack of oversight in relation to cases closed by officers, which 

may lead to inconsistencies in how reports are dealt with. 

The published planning enforcement strategy is dated July 2010 and should be reviewed to ensure 

contents are up to date and reflect current practises. We note the service’s intention to review the 

document following publication of this audit report. 

Apprenticeships  

Sound 

The Council monitors spend against the Apprenticeship Levy and reports to Management Board as 

part of regular Human Resources updates.  So far, the Council has supported at least 16 people 

through an apprenticeship qualification.  Our sample testing showed that each member of staff is has 

Page 53

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

been able to achieve their 20% “off the job hours” and has had all progress reviews completed as 

expected. 

Despite attempts to advertise the scheme to staff, the Council struggles to spend all the levy before 

the funds expire. At the time of the audit, approximately £39,000 had either been spent or 

committed and over £53,000 had expired, resulting in the funding being returned to Central 

Government for use by smaller employers who do not have to pay the Levy. 

Payroll & Expenses 

Strong 

We found the Council’s Payroll and Expenses arrangements are well designed and correctly operated 

in practice.  Our testing returned very positive results.  In a few minor cases we were unable 

complete our checks on records, potentially held in a paper format, due to restrictions in place 

visiting the Council offices. 

We also noted that the arrangements are supported by a range of guidance material available to all 

staff on the intranet and specific to payroll operations, which clearly formalise processes and 

procedures.  

We conducted a wide range of tests which, without exception, returned positive results.  

  

Page 54

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex D 

Reconciliation to the approved 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan 

The Position column provides the position as at 31 May 2022 and with the exception of 

the shaded reviews, does not warrant that this will be the final position for any of these 

reviews. The shaded rows, below, are the reviews which informed the 2021/22 Head of 

Audit Opinion statement. 

As part of Project Clean Sweep it was acknowledged that there can be a time-lag between 

issue and the draft and then finalisation of an audit report. The ‘Agreed Draft’ status 

signifies that management has accepted the assurance grading provided for the review 

and is substantially in agreement with the detailed findings. The management responses 

to the Actions have not yet been provided. Consequently, for the purposes of providing 

the Head of Audit Opinion audit reviews which have reached Agreed Draft have been 

included.  

4. Audit Review Priority Position at 31 May 2022 

Homelessness H Finalised 

Investment & Commercial Properties H Finalised 

IT Development H Work in progress 

Phishing Response (X-Cut) H Deferred 

Planning Enforcement H Finalised 

Waste Collection H Agreed Draft 

Leisure Services H Dropped 

Procurement (X-Cut) H Agreed Draft 

Staff Performance Mgt H Dropped 

   

Apprenticeships M Finalised 

Public Consultations M Agreed Draft 

Health & Safety M Work in progress 

Payroll & Expenses M Finalised 

Building Control M Work in progress 

Theatre Operations M Agreed Draft 

Leisure Services M Dropped 

(no topic agreed) M Dropped 

 
Note: Leisure Services appears twice in the Audit Plan 
 
(X-cut) signifies that the review was carried out over two or more of the Councils to which Mid Kent Audit 
provides the internal audit service.  

Page 55

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex E 

About Mid Kent Audit 

Standards and ethical compliance 

A. Government sets out the professional standards that Mid Kent Audit must work to in 

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the “PSIAS”). These Standards are a 

strengthened version of the Institute of Internal Audit’s global internal audit 

standards, which apply across public, private and voluntary sectors in more than 170 

countries around the world. 

B. The Standards include a specific demand for reporting to Senior Management and 

the Audit and Governance Committee on Mid Kent Audit’s conformance with the 

Standards.  

Conformance with the PSIAS 

C. CIPFA carried out a comprehensive External Quality Assessment (EQA) in May 2020 

which confirmed that MKA was in full conformance with the PSIAS and the CIPFA 

Local Government Application Note (LGAN). The PSIAS requires an EQA to be carried 

out at least once every five years, but does not stipulate specific time intervals for 

Internal Quality Self-Assessments (ISA) in the intervening period.  

D. In February 2021 the interim Head of Audit for Mid Kent Audit carried out an ISA of 

conformance with the PSIAS. This review confirmed conformance with the PSIAS 

and raised 13 advisory or low priority action points. It has been agreed by the Mid 

Kent Audit management board that these action points will be progressed by the 

substantive Head of Audit, once this person is in post. 

E. The scope of this ISA did not include consideration of either the risk management or 

counter fraud work carried out by MKA. The scope did not include consideration of 

the resourcing of MKA, the audit risk prioritisation process or the appropriateness of 

the times allocated to the different stages of individual audit assignments. 

Project Clean Sweep 

F. Project Clean Sweep was a pragmatic strategy put in place by Mid Kent Audit to 

deliver as much as possible of the 2021/22 planned work outstanding and ensuring 

there were no delivery ‘surprises’ at the time the Opinion statement for 2021/22 

was presented to the Audit and Governance Committee.  

G. There were two key objectives for Project Clean Sweep. These were: 

 To enable the interim Head of Audit to provide the Head of Audit opinion 

Page 56

Appendix A



MID KENT AUDIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

for 2021/22 in a timely manner; and 

 To ensure there is no a knock-on effect on the delivery of the 2022/23 

Audit Plan and thereby meaning the incoming substantive Head of Audit is 

arriving to an internal audit service which is on track to deliver the 2022/23 

audit plan, rather than still focussed on 2021/22. 

H. Project Clean Sweep included nine actions which were taken to assist in achieving a 

16th May 2022 deadline, which was subsequently extended to 31 May 2022. The key 

consideration was that all the Mid Kent Audit team were clearly sighted on the fact 

that achieving a deadline was not to be through any impairment of either audit 

quality or thoroughness. 

I. All of the Mid Kent Audit team who were in post during February to May 2022 rose 

to the challenge of delivering Project Clean Sweep and their effort and commitment 

needs to be recognised. The success in delivering Project Clean Sweep demonstrates 

the high calibre, can do ethos which confirms that the confidence the Council has 

with the Mid Kent Audit is not misplaced. 

Resources 

J. 2021/22 was a year of unprecedented staff change within Mid Kent Audit. Details of 

a number of these changes have been previously been reported to the Audit and 

Governance Committee in the reports submitted by Mid Kent Audit. By the end of 

the financial year all the management positions at Mid Kent Audit were filled by 

interims. The use of interims demonstrates that Mid Kent Audit has made good 

endeavours to minimise the impact of staff turnover during a period when the 

market for internal audit personnel has been the most difficult for over three 

decades. The staffing position is likely to remain an issue for 2022/23.  

Use of an external provider to assist with audit reviews 

K. In December 2021 following a procurement process BDO was appointed to carry out 

a number of the audit reviews for which Mid Kent Audit did not have the available 

resources in-house. This reflects that Mid Kent Audit has ensured the difficulties 

with staffing experienced during the year have been partially mitigated.  

 

Page 57

Appendix A



 

Page  

1 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

External Audit Progress Report 

 

External Audit Plan and Informing the 

Audit Risk Assessment 2021/22 

For Audit and Governance Committee on 26 July 2022

 

Summary 

Lead Member: All 

Lead Director: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Head of Service: Andrew Townsend, Interim Head of Audit Partnership 

Report Author: Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Classification: Public document (non-exempt) 

Wards Affected: All 

Approval Timetable Date 

Audit and Governance Committee 26 July 2022 

Recommendations 

Officer / Committee recommendations as supported by the Portfolio Holder: 

1. That the committee consider and agree the Annual Audit Plan and the Informing 

the Audit Risk Assessment reports.  

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



 

Page  

2 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

External Audit Progress Report 

 

1. Purpose of Report and Executive Summary 

1.1 This report provides the External Audit Plan and the Informing the Audit Risk 
Assessment for 2021/22.  

2. Introduction and Background 

2.1 The attached reports provide an update from the Appointed Auditor, Grant Thornton 
UK LLP on their approach for discharging their responsibilities in accordance with the 
Code of Practice and the scope set out in the International Standards on Auditing (UK) 
and include; 

 

• Audit Plan 2021/22; and 

• Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2021/22 
 
2.2 This report provides the pubic with assurance from the external auditors statutory work 

that public funds are being correctly accounted for. 

3. Options Considered 

3.1 The Audit and Governance Committee could choose not to agree to the reports from 
the Appointed Auditor.  

4. Preferred Option and Reason 
 

4.1 The Audit and Governance agree to the reports prepared by the independent external 

auditors in accordance with the principles of good governance.   

5. Consultation on Options 

5.1 Reports from the Appointed Auditor are produced in accordance with the Professional 

Code and when published stand as a matter of public record to which significant 

weight is attached.  

Page 59

Agenda Item 9



 

Page  

3 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

External Audit Progress Report 

 

6. Appendices and Background Documents 

Appendices: 

• Appendix A: External Audit Plan 2021/22 

• Appendix B: Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2021/22 

Background Papers: 

• None 

7. Cross Cutting Issues 

A. Legal (including the Human Rights Act) 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations require the Council to have a sound 
system of control which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 
This Report is part of those arrangements and is designed to ensure that the 
appropriate controls are effective. 
 
There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

B. Finance and Other Resources 

None identified at this stage. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

 

C. Staffing 

None identified at this stage. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

D. Risk Management 

Risk management is part of the governance framework surrounding the statutory audit, but it 

does not of itself raise new risk issues for consideration.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

Page 60

Agenda Item 9



 

Page  

4 of 4 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

External Audit Progress Report 

 

E. Environment and Sustainability 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

F. Community Safety 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

G. Equalities 

None identified at this stage. 

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

H. Data Protection 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

I. Health and Safety 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

J. Health and Wellbeing 

None identified at this stage.  

Lee Colyer, Director of Finance, Policy and Development 

 

 

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



P
age 62

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 63

A
ppendix A

mailto:Joanne.E.Brown@uk.gt.com
mailto:Omer.Awais@uk.gt.com
mailto:Isabel.McGibbon@uk.gt.com


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 64

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

P
age 65

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 66

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 67

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 68

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 69

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 70

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 71

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 72

A
ppendix A

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/0fa69c03-49ec-49ae-a8c9-cc7a2b65382a/ISA-(UK)-540_Revised-December-2018_final.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

–

–

–

–

•

P
age 73

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 74

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

14

IT system Audit area Planned level IT audit assessment

eFinancials Financial reporting • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Civica Cash Management • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

iTrent Payroll • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

Academy Housing Rents • Streamlined ITGC design assessment

P
age 75

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 76

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

16

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 77

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

.

•

•

•

Ethical Standard (revised 

2019)

P
age 78

A
ppendix A

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/601c8b09-2c0a-4a6c-8080-30f63e50b4a2/Revised-Ethical-Standard-2019-With-Covers.pdf


Commercial in confidence

P
age 79

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

19

Function Benefits for you

Data extraction Providing us with your financial 

information is made easier

File sharing An easy-to-use, ISO 27001 certified, 

purpose-built file sharing tool

Project 

management

Effective management and oversight of 

requests and responsibilities

Data analytics Enhanced assurance from access to 

complete data populations

P
age 80

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

20

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 81

A
ppendix A



Commercial in confidence

P
age 82

A
ppendix A

https://www.frc.org.uk/getattachment/97b5a417-d9bf-4649-b3c3-3ae49a350fe7/FRC-AQR-Major-Local-Audits_October-2021.pdf


Commercial in confidence

•

•Page 83

A
ppendix A



P
age 84

A
ppendix A



Informing the audit risk assessment 
for Tunbridge Wells Borough 
Council 2021/22

Name
Title
T 
E @uk.gt.com

P
age 85

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which 

we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit process.  It is not a comprehensive 

record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot 

be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect your business or any 

weaknesses in your internal controls.  This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and 

should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 

basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any 

other purpose.

2

P
age 86

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Table of Contents

Section Page

Purpose 4

General Enquiries of Management 6

Fraud 9

Fraud Risk Assessment 10

Laws and Regulations 15

Impact of Laws and Regulations 16

Related Parties 18

Going Concern 20

Accounting Estimates                                                                                            22

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management 23

Appendix A – Accounting Estimates 26 

3

P
age 87

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to contribute towards the effective two-way communication between Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s external 

auditors and Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s Audit Committee, as 'those charged with governance'. The report covers some important areas of 

the auditor risk assessment where we are required to make inquiries of the Audit Committee under auditing standards.   

Background

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK), (ISA(UK)) auditors have specific responsibilities to communicate with the Audit Committee. ISA(UK) 

emphasise the importance of two-way communication between the auditor and the Audit Committee and also specify matters that should be 

communicated.

This two-way communication assists both the auditor and the Audit Committee in understanding matters relating to the audit and developing a 

constructive working relationship. It also enables the auditor to obtain information relevant to the audit from the Audit Committee and supports the 

Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibilities in relation to the financial reporting process. 

Communication

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to obtain an understanding of management processes and the local authority’s oversight 

of the following areas:

• General Enquiries of Management

• Fraud,

• Laws and Regulations,

• Related Parties, 

• Going Concern, and

• Accounting Estimates.

4

P
age 88

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Purpose

This report includes a series of questions on each of these areas and the response we have received from Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s 

management. The Audit Committee should consider whether these responses are consistent with its understanding and whether there are any 

further comments it wishes to make. 

5

P
age 89

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What do you regard as the key events or issues that 

will have a significant impact on the financial statements 

for 2021/22?  

The Covid pandemic has depressed revenue streams from the provision of many services and whilst they 

are recovering, a number are not back to pre-pandemic levels. Whilst Government have provided some 

support for the loss of income in the form of grants in the first quarter of the year, it is not sufficient to cover 

the total losses experienced. Significant efforts have been made to manage costs, and this, combined with 

the Government Covid support grants, business rates and council tax loss support and new burdens 

grants, have enabled us to fully fund services during the year. 

During the pandemic, Government has called upon Local Authorities to provide grants to local businesses. 

Government has provided the funding, the council has paid the grants after a rigorous application and 

audit process, and a settlement is made with Government of any surpluses/deficits once the grant period 

has closed. The council is nearing the end of this process but cash levels on the Balance Sheet will still 

contain some Government Grants. Some grant monies will be seen in Debtors and Creditors and some 

will flow through the Cost of Services, dependent upon the conditions of the grant.  

2. Have you considered the appropriateness of the 

accounting policies adopted by Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council?

Have there been any events or transactions that may 

cause you to change or adopt new accounting policies? 

If so, what are they?

Yes

No. The accounting changes for IFRS 16 that were due to be introduced in 2022/23 have been deferred for 

2 years.

3. Is there any use of financial instruments, including 

derivatives? If so, please explain
Yes

The council has Trade Debtors, Loan Debtors, Investments with banks, Cash balances at banks, Investment 

with the Churches, Charities and Local Authorities (CCLA) Property Fund, Mortgage and other small 

debtors. 

4. Are you aware of any significant transaction outside 

P
age 90

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

5. Are you aware of any changes in circumstances that 

would lead to impairment of non-current assets? If so, 

what are they?

No

6. Are you aware of any guarantee contracts? If so, 

please provide further details
The only guarantee contracts the council hold are for some of our most vulnerable Housing customers, 

where we guarantee their rent should they default.

7. Are you aware of the existence of loss contingencies 

and/or un-asserted claims that may affect the financial 

statements? If so, please provide further details

No

8. Other than in house solicitors, can you provide details 

of those solicitors utilised by Tunbridge Wells Borough 

Council during the year. Please indicate where they are 

working on open litigation or contingencies from prior 

years?

1. Bevan Brittan is providing guidance to TWBC and T&M Council regarding a contract dispute with Urbaser

re the joint waste contract. Legal guidance is required to ensure that covid related matters/claims raised by 

Urbaser are appropriately addressed. 2021/22 £34,482. Ongoing.

2. Cornerstone Barristers – both Legal and Counsel costs of £218,150 for Planning advice for the Turnden

(completed), Hawkhurst Golf Club (appeal defended and was dismissed) and Land to the East of Highgate 

Hill Planning appeals (lost but avoided costs).

3. Iceni Projects Ltd – Witness support for Hawkhurst appeal £11,760.

3. David Travers, DS Risk Management and Laura Philips legal costs for the British Car Auctions Health and 

Safety Case. Cost were £24,739, £6,401 and £5,181 respectively. This case has been heard and won by 

the council.

P
age 91

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

9. Have any of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s 

service providers reported any items of fraud, non-

compliance with laws and regulations or uncorrected 

misstatements which would affect the financial 

statements? If so, please provide further details

No

10. Can you provide details of other advisors consulted 

during the year and the issue on which they were 

consulted?

Tetra Tech Environment Planning Transport Ltd - Light survey for a car park 

Spider Project Management Ltd - Project Management consultancy for the Amelia 

David Huskisson Associates Ltd - Landscape consultancy for a car park 

Hazle McCormack Young LLP - Architecture services for new depot 

On Architecture Ltd - Architecture services for Rif le Club 

Leap Environmental Ltd - Waste consultancy 

Listed Buildings Surveys Ltd - EPC f loor plan   - Packs in the Woods, Land Registry 

GL Hearn Ltd - Valuation Services Rif le Club, Hornbeam 
Monson Engineering Limited -  Transport surveys and advice, Depot and Culverden 
Stadium 

Hydrock Consultants Ltd -  Transport assessment Hawkenbury Sports Club 

Corylus Ecology Ltd - Ecology survey Rif le Club and Blackthorn Ave 

AGB Environmental - Biodiversity Report Cemetery 

Matthew Hayden - Project management Amelia 

Bracketts - Property Marketing St John's Rd 

MDA Maintenance Management Energy survey Calverley Terrace 

Evans & Langford LLP - Depot structural Survey 

Counterculture Partnership LLP -  Charity creation and cultural advice for the Amelia 

Intus Limited - Town Hall consolidation advice 

Eddie Lee - Assembly Hall systems advice 

AVC Wise - Pension advice 

Revels Off ice Ltd - Hireable space advice 

Focus Consultants 2010 LLP - Project Management Amelia 

Alix Slater Consultancy & Training Ltd - Evaluation consultancy Amelia 

Phil Jones Associates Ltd- Cycling advice 

Waste Consulting LLP- Grounds maintenance advice 

Inform CPI Ltd - Property advice for Revenues 

Metaphor Communications Ltd - advice for the Amelia 

de pass Montgomery - Amelia design consultants 

Purcell Architecture Ltd - Amelia architecture design 

Public Interest Planning - Local Plan advice 

Dixon Searle Partnership Ltd - Local Plan consultancy 

Sweco UK Ltd - Local Plan transport consultancy 

Hankinson Duckett Associates -Local Plan advice 

Justin Gardner - Af fordable Housing Needs assessment 

Andrew Ashcrof t Planning Ltd - Independent Goudhurst plan review 

John Slater Planning Ltd - Examination of  Benenden Neighbourhood plan 

Rural Plannning Ltd - Agricultural Planning advice for Local Plan 

David Locke Associates Ltd - Masterplanning services 

AECOM Infrastructure and Environment UK Ltd -  Local Plan advice 

James Clague Architects - advice Providence chapel Cranbrook 

Charlotte Glancy - Programme Off icer for Local Plan 

 

P
age 92

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Fraud

Matters in relation to fraud

ISA (UK) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements.

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both the Audit Committee and management. Management, with the 

oversight of the Audit Committee, needs to ensure a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and encourage a culture of 

honest and ethical behaviour. As part of its oversight, the Audit Committee should consider the potential for override of controls and 

inappropriate influence over the financial reporting process.

As Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s external auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements 

are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, 

considering the potential for management override of controls.

As part of our audit risk assessment procedures we are required to consider risks of fraud. This includes considering the arrangements 

management has put in place with regard to fraud risks including: 

• assessment that the financial statements could be materially misstated due to fraud,

• process for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, including any identified specific risks, 

• communication with the Audit Committee regarding its processes for identifying and responding to risks of fraud, and

• communication to employees regarding business practices and ethical behaviour. 

We need to understand how the Audit Committee oversees the above processes. We are also required to make inquiries of both 

management and the Audit Committee as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. These areas have been set out in 

the fraud risk assessment questions below together with responses from Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s management. 

9

P
age 93

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

1. Has Tunbridge Wells Borough Council assessed the 

risk of material misstatement in the financial statements 

due to fraud?

How has the process of identifying and responding to 

the risk of fraud been undertaken and what are the 

results of this process? 

How do the local authority’s risk management processes 

link to financial reporting?

Given the level of materiality associated with the financial statements, the risk does not lie with policing 

individual transactions but rather with journals and overall settings/parameters (as well as estimates, see 

separate questions). We considered this risk when selecting areas for further examination as part of 

compiling the internal audit plan. All areas of the Council’s operation received at least sufficient 

examination to prepare a meaningful risk assessment.

The results of this assessment are set out most significantly in the 2021/22 Audit & Assurance Plan 

(presented to Members in March 2022). The plan set out the specific areas of the Council’s business 

subject to more detailed examination. As required by Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, all work is 

conducted with an awareness of the risk of fraud.

The Council’s strategic risk management process is described in reports to Members at each Audit & 

Governance Committee meeting. This process details financial risks where relevant.

2. What have you determined to be the classes of 

accounts, transactions and disclosures most at risk to 

fraud? 

Given the level of materiality, as noted above, there is no single class of account or transaction that poses 

a raised risk of fraud beyond that which applies to all such balances.

3. Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected 

or alleged fraud, errors or other irregularities either 

within Tunbridge Wells Borough Council as a whole, or 

within specific departments since 1 April 2021? If so, 

please provide details

Like all public authorities, the Council will have been a victim of fraud at various points as an unavoidable 

part of its day to day operations, for example in administering parking services or paying out benefits. We 

have no indication that such fraud losses would constitute any sums beyond trivial at a whole-authority 

scale.

However we have not encountered any instances of actual, suspected or alleged fraud, errors or other 

irregularities that would have prompted specific reporting to external audit as individual items of concern. 

This includes the process we have undertaken to distribute Covid Business Grants.

P
age 94

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

4. As a management team, how do you communicate 

risk issues (including fraud) to those charged with 

governance?                                                                                      

Risk issues are reported to the Audit & Governance Committee at each meeting (see earlier responses).

5. Have you identified any specific fraud risks? If so, 

please provide details

Do you have any concerns there are areas that are at 

risk of fraud?

Are there particular locations within Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council where fraud is more likely to  occur?

None that would require separate individual disclosure.

Some areas are at greater risk of fraud by their nature, for example where cash payments are involved, but 

these have been reduced significantly since the pandemic. However, we are not aware of any areas at risk 

of fraud to a level or significance that give rise to material concern.

6. What processes do Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

have in place to identify and respond to risks of fraud?
The Council’s risk management process is as described in previous responses. The Council operates a 

dedicated compliance team looking at revenue fraud risk. Beyond that, the Council is part of the Mid Kent 

Audit partnership whose fraud response is as set out in the Audit & Assurance Plan.

P
age 95

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

7. How do you assess the overall control environment for 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, including:

• the existence of internal controls, including segregation of 

duties; and

• the process for reviewing the effectiveness the system of 

internal control?  

If internal controls are not in place or not effective where are the 

risk areas and what mitigating actions have been taken?

What other controls are in place to help prevent, deter or detect 

fraud?

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 

controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 

process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 

financial targets)? If so, please provide details

The Council’s assessment is included in the Annual Governance Statement. The AGS 

also incorporates the Head of Audit opinion that raises no significant concerns on the 

design or operation of internal control

8. Are there any areas where there is potential for misreporting? If 

so, please provide details

We are not aware of any specific areas that warrant individual specific highlighting.

P
age 96

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

9. How does Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

communicate and encourage ethical behaviours 

and business processes of it’s staff and 

contractors? 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns 

about fraud?

What concerns are staff expected to report about 

fraud? Have any significant issues been reported? If 

so, please provide details

The Council has a Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing policy. There were no significant issues 

reported in 2020/21.

10. From a fraud and corruption perspective, what 

are considered to be high-risk posts?

How are the risks relating to these posts identified, 

assessed and managed?

With respect to the financial statements, the higher risk posts will be those that wield the most significant 

influence on reporting. The Council has in place controls, including review and segregation of duties, that 

mitigate those risks.

There are also posts which are able to make payments. They are all senior Finance posts, which are 

professionally qualified. Individual transactions where payments are made to third parties require 2 

authorisers.

These posts are also all insured against fraud.

11. Are you aware of any related party relationships 

or transactions that could give rise to instances of 

fraud? If so, please provide details

How do you mitigate the risks associated with fraud 

related to related party relationships and 

transactions?

No.

The Council has policies on declarations of interest. These policies are managed by Mid Kent Legal 

Services.

P
age 97

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Fraud risk assessment

Question Management response

12. What arrangements are in place to report fraud 

issues and risks to the Audit Committee? 

How does the Audit Committee exercise oversight 

over management's processes for identifying and 

responding to risks of fraud and breaches of internal 

control?

What has been the outcome of these arrangements 

so far this year?

Reporting is through either/both Internal Audit reporting or Strategic Risk reporting depending on the 

nature of the issues.

The Committee reviews risk reports at each meeting, with outcomes as described in Committee papers.

13. Are you aware of any whistle blowing potential 

or complaints by potential whistle blowers? If so, 

what has been your response?

There is one case that has been managed as if it was a whistle blowing case, but has not been raised as 

such by the individual. The Monitoring Officer and the Director of Finance, Policy & Development have 

both investigated their relevant areas of the case and have determined that there is no case to answer.

14. Have any reports been made under the Bribery 

Act? If so, please provide details

No.

P
age 98

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Law and regulations

Matters in relation to laws and regulations

ISA (UK) 250 requires us to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of the financial statements.

Management, with the oversight of the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring that Tunbridge Wells Borough Council’s operations are 

conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including those that determine amounts in the financial statements. 

As auditor, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or 

error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make 

inquiries of management and the Audit Committee as to whether the body is in compliance with laws and regulations. Where we become aware of 

non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect on the financial 

statements.

Risk assessment questions have been set out below together with responses from management.

P
age 99

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

1. How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 

and regulations have been complied with?

What arrangements does Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

have in place to prevent and detect non-compliance with laws 

and regulations?

Are you aware of any changes to the local authority’s regulatory 

environment that may have a significant impact on the local 

authority’s financial statements?

The council employs professionally qualified staff. They are Members of their professional 

bodies and complete professional development courses regularly e.g. qualified accountants 

attend the close down training run by Cipfa and Grant Thornton annually.

The council has a Monitoring Officer who is responsible for ensuring that Governance is in 

accordance with the appropriate legislation for Local Authorities.

The Council is part of the Mid Kent Audit Partnership, which provides an internal audit 

function which gives oversight and review to the everyday workings of the council and can 

provide ad hoc advice should there be significant changes to process or procedure.

The Council has a robust Cabinet Advisory Board system, Cabinet, Audit and Governance 

Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committee who all have oversight and challenge of 

the processes and procedures.

We are not aware of any changes to the Council’s regulatory environment that may have a 

significant impact on the Council’s financial statements?

2. How is the Audit Committee provided with assurance that all 

relevant laws and regulations have been complied with?

There is regular reporting of Audit Report Findings from the Mid Kent Audit Partnership and

Grant Thornton as external auditors.

There is regular reporting on Risk Management which will include any significant changes to

legislation affecting Local Authorities and their finances.

3. Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulation since 1 

April 2021 with an on-going impact on the 2021/22 financial 

statements? If so, please provide details

Not that we are aware of.

4. Are there any actual or potential litigation or claims that No. Anything that could be material is already declared.

P
age 100

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Impact of laws and regulations

Question Management response

5. What arrangements does Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council have in place to identify, evaluate 

and account for litigation or claims? 

The Finance department and Legal teams work closely together. At year end a check of all outstanding

cases is carried out by the Finance team (it is part of the close down plan), with the Legal team to

identify any cases that could impact the accounts either in the form of a provision or contingent asset or

liability.

On a quarterly basis Service Accountants will meet with their managers and discuss any cases which

could have an impact upon the accounts during the year or at some point in the future. This is fed back

through the quarterly monitoring reports that go through the Finance & Governance Cabinet Advisory

meetings and then to Cabinet.

6. Have there been any reports from other regulatory        

bodies, such as HM Revenues and Customs, which 

indicate non-compliance? If so, please provide 

details

No

1

7

P
age 101

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Matters in relation to Related Parties

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council are required to disclose transactions with bodies/individuals that would be classed as related parties.  These 

may include:

■ bodies that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by Tunbridge Wells Borough Council;

■ associates;

■ joint ventures;

■ a body that has an interest in the authority that gives it significant influence over the local authority;

■ key management personnel, and close members of the family of key management personnel, and

■ post-employment benefit plans (pension fund) for the benefit of employees of the local authority, or of any body that is a related party 

of the local authority.

A disclosure is required if a transaction (or series of transactions) is material on either side, i.e. if a transaction is immaterial from the [type of 

body]’s perspective but material from a related party viewpoint then the local authority must disclose it.

ISA (UK) 550 requires us to review your procedures for identifying related party transactions and obtain an understanding of the controls that you 

have established to identify such transactions. We will also carry out testing to ensure the related party transaction disclosures you make in the 

financial statements are complete and accurate. 

1

8

P
age 102

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Related Parties

Question Management response

1. Have there been any changes in the related 

parties including those disclosed in Tunbridge Wells 

Borough Council’s 2020/21 financial statements? 

If so please summarise: 

• the nature of the relationship between these 

related parties and Tunbridge Wells Borough 

Council

• whether Tunbridge Wells Borough Council has 

entered into or plans to enter into any 

transactions with these related parties

• the type and purpose of these transactions 

Nothing that is considered material.

2. What controls does Tunbridge Wells Borough 

Council have in place to identify, account for and 

disclose related party transactions and 

relationships?

All members and senior officers are required to complete an annual return, disclosing the details of any 

interest of themselves and their close family members, which might have an impact on their activities on 

behalf of the Council. Members also disclose such interests in the Register of Members’ Interests, which 

is held at the Town Hall, Tunbridge Wells, and is open to public inspection.

All of the Officers have returned their declarations. There were no transactions considered of material 

significance to warrant separate disclosures in the accounts.

3. What controls are in place to authorise and 

approve significant transactions and arrangements 

with related parties?

If the related party transaction is significant, it will go through the normal Cabinet approval processes for 

authorisation, after having gone through a robust tendering process as per the Contract Procedure 

Rules.

If the transaction is a small procurement, they will be properly tendered as per the Contract Procedure 

Rules which ensures that a fair and robust tender process is carried out by using independent 

assessors.

4. What controls are in place to authorise and There are emergency authorisation procedures written within the constitution, which are followed.

P
age 103

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Matters in relation to Going Concern

The audit approach for going concern is based on the requirements of ISA (UK) 570, as interpreted by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial 

statements and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2020). It also takes into account the National Audit Office's 

Supplementary Guidance Note (SGN) 01: Going Concern – Auditors’ responsibilities for local public bodies.

Practice Note 10 confirms that in many (but not all) public sector bodies, the use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of 

significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis 

for accounting will apply where the body’s services will continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related 

to going concern is unlikely to exist. 

For this reason, a straightforward and standardised approach to compliance with ISA (UK) 570 will often be appropriate for public sector bodies. 

This will be a proportionate approach to going concern based on the body’s circumstances and the applicable financial reporting framework. In 

line with Practice Note 10, the auditor’s assessment of going concern should take account of the statutory nature of the body and the fact that the 

financial reporting framework for local government bodies presume going concern in the event of anticipated continuation of provision of the 

services provided by the body. Therefore, the public sector auditor applies a ‘continued provision of service approach’, unless there is clear 

evidence to the contrary. This would also apply even where those services are planned to transfer to another body, as in such circumstances, the 

underlying services will continue. 

For many public sector bodies, the financial sustainability of the body and the services it provides are more likely to be of significant public 

interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Financial sustainability is a key component of value for money work and it 

is through such work that it will be considered. 

P
age 104

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Going Concern

Question Management response

1. What processes and controls does management have 

in place to identify events and / or conditions which may 

indicate that the statutory services being provided by 

Tunbridge Wells will no longer continue?

The Council maintains a strategic risk register which is reported on to Members of the Audit & 

Governance Committee on a quarterly basis. This highlights the key risks to the council, the 

consequences of the risks coming to fruition and what mitigations have been put in place.

Where appropriate, external expertise is employed (usually Zurich who are our insurer) to formulate 

those risks and work on how to mitigate them.

2. Are management aware of any factors which may 

mean for Tunbridge Wells Borough Council that either 

statutory services will no longer be provided or that 

funding for statutory services will be discontinued? If so, 

what are they?

The impact of high inflation and the hot employment market, combined with the residual effects on 

revenue of the pandemic, mean that financial challenges are very real. This council chooses to 

provide many non-statutory services at present, which may be threatened if the economy continues 

in its present vein. Members can make decisions around non-statutory services to mitigate any 

impact on statutory services however, so these can be protected.

There has been a recent change in the composition of the council, following the May 22 elections. 

The Council now has no party in overall control and is likely to be run by a coalition. This may make 

decision making slower as there are new Members that will need to understand the council’s 

financial position very quickly and political ambitions will need to be negotiated upon.

Providing statutory services are monitored closely and appropriate decisions are made, they can be 

maintained.

3. With regard to the statutory services currently 

provided by Tunbridge Wells Borough Council, does 

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council expect to continue to 

deliver them for the foreseeable future, or will they be 

delivered by related public authorities if there are any 

plans for Tunbridge Wells Borough Council to cease to 

exist?

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council does expect to continue to provide the current statutory services 

for the foreseeable future.

There are no plans for Tunbridge Wells Borough Council to cease to exist.

4. Are management satisfied that the financial reporting Yes and Yes

P
age 105

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Accounting estimates

Matters in relation to accounting estimates

ISA (UK) 540 (Revised December 2018)  requires auditors to understand and assess a body’s internal controls over accounting estimates, 

including:

• The nature and extent of oversight and governance over management’s financial reporting process relevant to accounting estimates;

• How management identifies the need for and applies specialised skills or knowledge related to accounting estimates;

• How the body’s risk management process identifies and addresses risks relating to accounting estimates;

• The body’s information system as it relates to accounting estimates; 

• The body’s control activities in relation to accounting estimates; and

• How management reviews the outcomes of previous accounting estimates.

As part of this process auditors also need to obtain an understanding of the role of those charged with governance, which is particularly important 

where the estimates have high estimation uncertainty, or require significant judgement. 

Specifically do Audit Committee members:

• Understand the characteristics of the methods and models used to make the accounting estimates and the risks related to them;

• Oversee management’s process for making accounting estimates, including the use of models, and the monitoring activities undertaken by 

management; and

• Evaluate how management made the accounting estimates?

We would ask the Audit Committee to satisfy itself that the arrangements for accounting estimates are adequate. 

2

2

P
age 106

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

1. What are the classes of transactions, events and 

conditions, that are significant to the financial 

statements that give rise to the need for, or changes in, 

accounting estimate and related disclosures?

See below Accounting Estimates List.

2. How does the local authority’s risk management 

process identify and address risks relating to accounting 

estimates?

As part of the Year End planning process all of the Management Judgements are reviewed and updated if 

necessary. 

Additional risks will be added as they become apparent, either through the year End Close Down sessions 

or via the various advisory sources the council taps into. These include membership of the Cipfa FAN, 

purchase of Treasury Advice from Link Asset Management, Membership of the Local Govt Association and 

subscriptions to LG Futures.

3. How does management identify the methods, 

assumptions or source data, and the need for changes 

in them, in relation to key accounting estimates?

Generally this is through research carried out by our professionally qualified staff members or advice sought 

from the advisors we subscribe to.

4. How do management review the outcomes of 

previous accounting estimates?
There is a quarterly monitoring process that goes through Cabinet, which compares forecasts (which include 

accounting estimates) with actuals and explanations are given for any variances. Clearly, this involves 

review and reflection of the original estimates.

Similarly, this is summarised in the year end accounts.

5. Were any changes made to the estimation processes 

in 2021/22 and, if so, what was the reason for these?
Again, please see below Accounting Estimates List.

P
age 107

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management
Question Management response

6. How does management identify the need for and 

apply specialised skills or knowledge related to 

accounting estimates?

Finance Managers will make an assessment as to whether they think they can obtain the information they 

require in order to make a reasonable accounting estimate themselves, but if not, will employ professionals 

with the appropriate skills to make the judgement for them or to provide the specialist information that the 

finance staff are lacking.

7. How does the local authority determine what control 

activities are needed for significant accounting 

estimates, including the controls at any service 

providers or management experts? 

The council will employ specialist experts where the impact on the accounts can be significant and where 

that expertise exists in the market.

As part of the tendering process for these services, there are strict criteria that the experts will need to 

comply with and provide evidence of that compliance (including their internal control procedures and 

evidence of their professional expertise) if they are to be awarded a contract.

8. How does management monitor the operation of 

control activities related to accounting estimates, 

including the key controls at any service providers or 

management experts? 

Once an expert report is received, the finance staff at the council will review the report and findings for 

reasonableness, using their own experience and professional expertise. Anything that appears illogical will 

be challenged.

If there is a change of personnel from an expert consultancy, this must be reported to the council and they 

must have the appropriate qualifications to undertake the work.

9. What is the nature and extent of oversight and 

governance over management’s financial reporting 

process relevant to accounting estimates, including:

- Management’s process for making significant 

accounting estimates

- The methods and models used

- The resultant accounting estimates included in the 

financial statements.

The accounting team will generally make a proposal to the Head of Finance. If professional advice needs to 

be sought to support a decision, it will be obtained at this stage or if models need to be created to support 

an approach, this will be created to assess likely impacts and outcomes. If the estimate is thought likely to 

have a significant impact, the Head of Finance will seek agreement of approach with the Grant Thornton 

audit team before the assumption is applied during the close down process. The decision will then be 

implemented by the accounting team. 

If is a new estimate or materially different from previous years, it will be highlighted in the close down report 

taken to the Audit & Governance Committee for the approval of the Annual Financial Report.

P
age 108

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Accounting Estimates - General Enquiries of Management

Question Management response

10. Are management aware of any transactions, 

events, conditions (or changes in these) that may 

give rise to recognition or disclosure of significant 

accounting estimates that require significant 

judgement (other than those in Appendix A)? If so, 

what are they?

No

11. Why are management satisfied that their 

arrangements for the accounting estimates, as 

detailed in Appendix A, are reasonable?

They have been duly considered and tested over the years by the councils professional officers.

12. How is the Audit Committee provided with 

assurance that the arrangements for accounting 

estimates are adequate ?

As explained in Q9, any new estimates/changes to estimates likely to have a material impact on the 

accounts are reported when we ask the Audit & Governance Committee to sign off the Annual Financial 

Report.

2

5

P
age 109

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to make 

the estimate

Controls used to identify 

estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Accruals The Council has a cut off of 

£250 for creditors, debtors, 

income in advance and 

prepayments. 

Any transactions under this 

amount will not be accrued 

for unless it is of importance 

to the budget holder or if the 

sum of transactions under 

one budget code is greater 

than £250. 

No It is estimated that the sum of 

transactions under £250, and 

therefore not accrued for, is 

immaterial.

No

Accounting 

standard 

issues, not 

adopted 

The Code requires changes in 

accounting policy to be applied 

retrospectively unless alternative 

transitional arrangements are 

specified in the Code. 

Not yet implemented. No An authority is required to disclose 

information relating to the impact 

of an accounting change that will 

be required by a new standard 

that has been issued but not yet 

adopted by the Code for the 

relevant year. The additional 

disclosures that will be required in 

the 2022/23 financial statements 

in respect of accounting changes 

that are introduced in the 2022/23 

Code are:

- Annual Improvement to IFRS 

Standards 2018-2020. The annual 

IFRS improvement programme 

No

26

P
age 110

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimates Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management 

have used an 

expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Employee 

Benefits
Accounting standards require 

that the value of employee 

benefits such as outstanding 

annual leave is taken into 

account as a liability at the end 

of the financial year. 

The Council evaluates 

the amount concerned 

at the end of each 

financial year, and since 

2019/20 has made an 

adjustment to its 

accounts for this 

amount. 

No For 2021/22 the value of the accrual was 

lower than in 2020/21 as previously staff 

had been unable to take leave due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic. They have now 

found time to take some of it this year.

Under legislation the accrual is matched 

by appropriations to or from an 

adjustment account (an unusable 

reserve), so there is no impact on the call 

on Council Tax or on the General Fund 

balance.

No

Fair Value 

Measurement
Inputs to the measurement 

techniques in respect of the 

Council’s fair value 

measurement of its assets and 

liabilities are categorised 

within the fair value hierarchy 

as follows:

Level 1 – fair value is only 

derived from quoted prices in 

active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities

Level 2 – fair value is 

calculated from inputs other 

Reviewed each year. Link Asset 

Services have 

verified 

approach.

The Council has assessed its assets and 

liabilities as follows:

CCLA Property Fund – Level 1

Fair value assessed from unadjusted 

quoted prices in active markets for 

identical shares

Investments – Level 2

Fair value assessed by calculating the 

present value of cash flows that take 

place over the remaining life of the 

instrument

No

27

P
age 111

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates

Estimate Method / model used to make the 

estimate

Controls used to identify 

estimates

Whether 

management 

have used 

an expert

Underlying assumptions:

- Assessment of degree of 

uncertainty

- Consideration of alternative 

estimates

Has there 

been a

change in 

accounting

method in 

year?

Pensions Barnett Waddingham provide 

estimates as part of the information 

they provide to the council to enable it 

to report in accordance with IFRS 19. 

This is based upon their professional 

expertise and research into market 

information and data e.g. death rates 

forecast, at the time. 

Upon receipt of the 

information, the councils 

qualified accountants will 

undertake a review for 

reasonableness, 

comparing returns with 

previous years and 

applying their general 

knowledge of the economy. 

Anything that is of concern 

is questioned to ensure a 

full understanding of the 

information provided and to 

provide verification of the 

assumptions made.

Barnett 

Waddingham

This is a field in which council officers 

have limited knowledge and they must 

rely to a significant extent, on the 

expertise of the professionals employed 

to provide these assumptions on their 

behalf.

No

Group 

Accounts
The Tunbridge Wells Property 

Holdings Company began trading on 

18 May 2015 and is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of the Council. 

The revenue has only been 

£245,007 during the year 

and is considered 

immaterial. Hence the 

council has determined that 

it is not yet necessary to 

provide Group Accounts.  

This will be monitored in 

the future and should the 

revenue become material, 

No Immaterial revenue. No

P
age 112

A
ppendix B



Commercial in confidence

Appendix A Accounting Estimates (Continued)

Estimate Method / model used to 

make the estimate

Controls used to 

identify estimates

Whether 

management have 

used an expert

Underlying 

assumptions:

- Assessment of degree 

of uncertainty

- Consideration of 

alternative estimates

Has there been a

change in 

accounting

method in year?

NNDR Provision As part of the changes 

relating to business rates 

retention that came into 

force in 2013, a provision 

is now made to allow for 

the potential losses from 

appeals against 

valuations. The appeals 

outstanding on the 2010 

list are calculated based 

on the appeals 

outstanding at 31 March 

2021 and the average 

reduction achieved from 

settled appeals.

The new 2017 Rating list, 

applicable from 1 April 

2017, is subject to a new, 

and significantly more 

complex appeal process. 

This has meant that far 

fewer appeals have been 

made than would normally 

have been expected. It is 

The appeals 

provisions are 

monitored monthly as 

new schedules of 

appeals are received 

from the Valuation 

Office. There is a 

retrospective check 

each year on the 

actual cases settled 

to ensure that the 

%ages being 

estimated are still in 

line with what the 

Valuation Office is 

determining in the 

cases they settle.

No The low number of 

appeals experienced this 

year is not anticipated to 

be the case indefinitely 

and the amounts appealed 

could be significant and 

retrospective. It could be 

argued that the amounts to 

be appealed and the 

timescales for the appeals, 

cannot be determined and 

therefore should be a 

contingent liability. 

However, the Ministry of 

Housing, Communities and 

Local Government has 

provided an estimate that 

2.1p in every £1 of the 

annual Rateable Value 

would be appealed and in 

order to reflect this 

material sum, a provision 

has been made in the 

Collection Fund. The 

29

P
age 113

A
ppendix B



© 2022 Grant Thornton UK LLP

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to 

one or more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member 

firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not 

provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 114

A
ppendix B



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Urgent Business 

 

Urgent Business 

For Audit and Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To consider any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent, for the reasons to be 

stated, in accordance with Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972. 

Page 115

Agenda Item 10



 

Page  

1 of 1 
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council 

Date of the Next Meeting 

 

Date of the Next Meeting 

For Audit and Governance Committee on Tuesday 26 July 2022 

 

Procedural Item 

To note that the next scheduled meeting is Tuesday 13 September 2022. 

Page 116

Agenda Item 11


	Agenda
	1 Chairman's Introduction
	2 Apologies for Absence
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Notification of Visiting Members wishing to speak (in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 18):
	5 Minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee dated 22 March 2022
	6 Future Work Programme as at 26 July 2022
	7 Strategic Risk Review July 2022
	Appendix A Strategic Risk Register Update July 2022

	8 Internal Audit Annual Report 2021/22
	Appendix A Internal Audit Annual Report 2021 2022

	9 External Audit Plan and Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2021/22
	Appendix A External Audit Plan 2021 2022
	Appendix B Informing the Audit Risk Assessment 2021 2022

	10 Urgent Business
	11 Date of Next Meeting Tuesday 13 September 2022

